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Krka Group highlights
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* New products are products launched on a particular market in the 
past five years.

When comparing the operating results with the 2009 figures, please 
take into account that the 2009 result was significantly affected by the 
surplus of released provisions for lawsuits related to intellectual property 
rights (EUR 91.4 million) over new provisions concerning a European 
Commission procedure (EUR 47.5 million).

+5%
Sales revenues went up by 
5% and reached EUR 1,201 million.

+14%
EBITDA increased by 
14% and amounted to EUR 322 million.

46%
The share of new* products in sales

+8%
Profit advanced by 8% and 
totalled EUR 173 million,  
while market capitalisation at the  
year-end reached EUR 2,126 million.



Financial highlights of the  
Krka Group's performance

1	The difference between operating income and expenses   
2	Profit for the year/Average shareholders' equity in the year 
3	Profit for the year/Average total assets in the year 
4	Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent/Average number of shares issued in the year excluding treasury shares 
5	Equity as at 31 December/Total shares issued

EUR thousand 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Revenues 1,200,827 1,143,301 1,075,627 1,010,021 953,038

EBIT1 227,588 192,308 211,561 208,134 233,643

EBITDA 321,732 282,276 298,747 289,855 310,318

Profit for the year 172,766 159,839 162,735 170,918 173,685

Non-current assets (year-end) 973,954 926,000 863,865 848,847 810,086

Current assets (year-end) 785,930 700,748 670,162 639,357 530,946

Equity (year-end) 1,332,611 1,240,521 1,139,754 1,053,327 920,369

Non-current liabilities (year-end) 128,833 145,362 155,092 202,709 237,834

Current liabilities (year-end) 298,440 240,865 239,181 232,168 182,829

R&D costs 97,235 101,102 92,932 90,924 88,283

Investments 157,268 153,288 109,713 115,449 90,274

RATIOS 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

EBIT margin 19.0% 16.8% 19.7% 20.6% 24.5%

EBITDA margin 26.8% 24.7% 27.8% 28.7% 32.6%

Profit margin (ROS) 14.4% 14.0% 15.1% 16.9% 18.2%

ROE2 13.4% 13.4% 14.8% 17.3% 20.4%

ROA3 10.2% 10.1% 10.8% 12.1% 13.3%

Liabilities/Equity 0.321 0.311 0.346 0.413 0.457

R&D costs/Revenues 8.1% 8.8% 8.6% 9.0% 9.3%

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Year-end 10,048 9,461 8,948 8,569 7,975

Average 9,783 9,197 8,789 8,328 7,816

SHARE INFORMATION 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Total number of shares issued 35,426,120 35,426,120 35,426,120 35,426,120 35,426,120

Earnings per share in EUR4 5.24 4.80 4.85 5.06 5.14

Dividend per share in EUR 1.61 1.50 1.40 1.10 1.05

Closing price at the Ljubljana Stock Exchange  
at the end of period in EUR

60.00 50.00 52.90 62.95 64.04

Price/Earnings ratio (P/E) 11.46 10.41 10.91 12.44 12.46

Book value in EUR5 37.62 35.02 32.17 29.73 25.98

Price/Book value (P/B) 1.60 1.43 1.64 2.12 2.46

Market capitalisation in EUR thousand (31 Dec) 2,125,567 1,771,306 1,874,042 2,230,074 2,268,689

EXCHANGE RATES 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

USD (average) 1.328 1.285 1.392 1.326 1.395

USD (31.12.) 1.379 1.319 1.294 1.328 1.434

K
rk

a 
G

ro
up

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

I F
in

an
ci

al
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
of

 t
he

 K
rk

a 
G

ro
up

's
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce



Along with quality and safety, efficiency is vital for Krka's pharmaceutical 
products and services. But it is also much more. It has become a part 
of Krka's culture and represents the contribution of Krka's employees 
to the development and expansion of Krka's business operations. It is 
also reflected in innovations and useful proposals for improving work 
processes, products and services. 

Efficiency is like the wind scattering the 
seeds of Krka's creativity and innovation.

That is why we were able to push our development objectives further, 
even during the unfavourable global economic situation. Our planned 
stable growth continued. We recognised opportunities for further 
development in our internal and external environments and pursued 
them. In a year of considerable investments in new technologies and 
capacities, we became even more open to new ideas and suggestions. 
It is no coincidence that we surpassed several objectives and that at 
the same time the number of useful proposals given by our employees 
rose considerably. All of this provided a good starting point for Krka's 
60th anniversary in 2014.

In the future, our corporate creativity will also stem from: 
•	 the continuous improvement of business processes; and  
•	 development of accessible solutions for effective treatment and for 

strengthening health.

Krka Group highlights
Financial highlights of the  
Krka Group's performance



The energy of efficiency

>>	For detailed information, please refer to chapters: Marketing and sales, Research and development, Responsibility to employees, Social corporate responsibility, and 	
	 Responsibility to our natural environment.

Over

EUR 157
million

was invested by Krka in 2013 in 
production, quality assurance and  

the expansion of research and 
development capacities.

20% 
more  

useful proposals were  
given than in 2012.

fast and
responsive

decision making

Equipment maintenance  
costs remained 

the same 
as in 2012,

even though production  
was up 5%.

EUR 97
million 

was allocated to research and 
development. 









Efficiency 
and creativity 
are Krka's 
twins.

40

Efficiency is the other face of Krka's 
creativity, and they both form an 
inseparable part of our culture. Efficiency 
opens up the path to creativity with 
suggestions for improvement and with 
new answers to the questions of how to 
work better and how to use assets and 
resources more economically.

Hand in hand, they facilitate new solutions 
in all areas of business operations. 
Together, they search for new knowledge 
and findings in the area of maintaining 
and strengthening health, they foster 
cooperation with scientific and research 
institutions, and motivate young talents.

years, we have been encouraging research and 
professional development with Krka Prizes.

For over   

30 
In 2013 we awarded

of them for outstanding research achievements.

young researchers,

5
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Statement by the President  
of the Management Board

I am pleased to say that our operating results were very good, 
even though 2013 was a challenging year for the pharmaceutical 
market. Our significant advantage is that we use our own 
know-how to develop products, that we make them in our own 
production plants, and that Krka products are marketed and sold 
by our employees in over 70 countries. In all these operations,  
we act economically and with reasonable care and diligence.    

In 2013 Krka Group sales increased by 5%, with sales of products 
and services amounting to EUR 1.2 billion. Our operating profit 
rose by 18% to EUR 228 million and profit for the year by 8% 
to EUR 173 million. We launched 17 new products in 35 
pharmaceutical forms, made investments in production facilities, 
recruited new employees and entered new markets, including 
promising overseas markets.    

With EUR 428 million worth of sales and 22% sales growth, 
Region East Europe was Krka's largest and fastest growing 
market in 2013. Growth was achieved in all Eastern European 
markets in which we are present. Krka's brands are a gold 
standard in many places in this region and in the Russian 
Federation we hold the position of a local producer, which we 
strengthened in 2013 with our largest investment to date in this 
country, namely, the production and distribution centre Krka-Rus 
2. The Ukrainian, Kazakh, Uzbek, Belarus and smaller markets in 
the region are also important and hold potential. 

In Central Europe, which also includes Krka’s three key markets 
– Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary – we sold EUR 283 
million worth of products, which is comparable to 2012. Despite 
unfavourable conditions in most markets in Central Europe, we 
increased our sales in Poland, our biggest market in this region, 
by 9% and thereby compensated for the lower sales in certain 
other markets in the region.  

In Western Europe we sold EUR 258 million worth of products, 
which is 4% less than in 2012. This was not only the result of 
falling market prices, but also of lower sales of prescription 
medicines through third partners. We responded by strength-
ening our own sales network and establishing a new sales 
region Overseas Markets, which includes the Middle and Far 
East, Africa, and the Americas.   

In the markets of South-Eastern Europe we sold EUR 146 million 
worth of products, which is a little lower than in 2012, although we 
increased the value of sales in Romania, Macedonia and Kosovo.  

We sold EUR 87 million worth of products and services in the 
Slovenian market in 2013. Operations were strongly affected by 
austerity measures so sales did not achieve the levels of 2012. 
Nevertheless, Krka maintains its leading market share of the 
domestic market.  

Jože Colarič, President of the Management Board and Chief Executive
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In 2013 the price of a Krka share rose by 20% as the result of 
the good operations, partial recovery of the financial markets and 
regular contacts between Krka and its investors. The new five-year 
development strategy we adopted in November 2013 includes 
an altered dividend policy. In the years between 2014 and 2018 
we will not allocate up to one-third of the previous year’s profit 
for dividends, but up to 50%, taking into consideration Krka’s 
financial needs for investments and potential larger acquisitions. 

New challenges lie ahead of us. Despite the uncertainties, global 
market trends indicate that the generic pharmaceutical industry 
will continue to develop, although additional efforts will have to 
be taken to achieve success. At Krka we believe that the right 
answer is new products and our own development, production, 
marketing and sales. We expect this business model to generate 
an average of at least 5% annual sales growth in the next few 
years, exceeding the anticipated 3% market growth. 

Steady growth, investment and development projects, entering 
new markets and therapeutic areas, risk management and due 
diligence are the foundations of Krka's development. We will 
continue to enter global markets with new products that we 
will successfully market and sell, creating the conditions for the 
continuing development of this company with a 60-year tradition.   

Jože Colarič
President of the Management Board and Chief Executive 

We invested EUR 97 million in research and development in 
2013. We currently have 175 new products in the pipeline and 
are applying new developments to existing brands. Krka is 
currently best known for its medicinal products for the treatment 
of cardiovascular diseases, alimentary and metabolic diseases, 
and diseases of the central nervous system. In the next few 
years, we will expand our portfolio with medicinal products for 
the treatment of diabetes, pain relief, antimicrobial medicines and 
medicines for the treatment of cancer.    

In 2013 the Krka Group allocated over EUR 157 million for 
investments and currently over 20 investment projects are 
underway. The largest is Notol 2 which will increase the current 
production capacity of pharmaceutical solid dosage forms of 12 
billion a year by about 4.5 billion. We have also been expanding 
and modernising other production facilities. We have been 
strengthening our product development and increasing product 
sales through our own sales network by investing in research and 
development, and our own production and distribution centres 
around the world.

For the first time in Krka’s history, the number of employees 
exceeded 10,000 at the end of 2013. A little less than half are 
employed in Slovenia, while the others are employed in Krka’s 
subsidiaries and representative offices abroad. The development 
of our employees is carefully planned. By providing training in 
leadership, personal growth and quality management coupled 
with learning foreign languages and the use of modern information 
technology, we enable them to develop and advance.  
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2013 Report of the Supervisory Board

At the six Supervisory Board meetings and eight Supervisory 
Board Committee meetings held in 2013, the Board diligently 
and responsibly monitored the operations of the Krka Company 
and Krka Group throughout the year, evaluated the work of the 
Board, kept under review the opinions of the external expert pub-
lic about Krka, strengthened the good practice of the Supervisory 
Board’s operations and engaged in other supervisory activities in 
line with the legislation, good practice and internal acts. 

The work of the Supervisory 
Board
The composition of the Supervisory Board allows for produc-
tive discussions and the making of sound decisions based on 
the range of experience held by its members. In 2013 the Krka 
Supervisory Board had nine members, four women and five men 
aged 43 to 71 who are experts in pharmacy, chemistry, econom-
ics, mechanical engineering and organisational sciences and 
management. 

Shareholder representatives of the Board included Jože Lenič 
MSc, President of the Supervisory Board, Matjaž Rakovec, 
Deputy President of the Supervisory Board, Prof. Julijana Kristl 
PhD, Vincenc Manček, Mojca Osolnik Videmšek and Assoc. 
Prof. Sergeja Slapničar PhD, while the employee representa-
tives were Franc Šašek, Deputy President of the Supervisory 
Board, Mateja Vrečer PhD and Tomaž Sever MSc. 

The work and decision-making of the Supervisory Board is 
based on observations of how well Krka is achieving its objec-
tives at the Company and Group levels. Meetings offer an oppor-
tunity for board members to voice their opinions and concerns, 
while working to reconcile any differences in opinion in order to 

pass unanimous resolutions. Also in 2013 board members had 
all the necessary data, reports and information available to them. 
They received the materials in advance so they had enough time 
to be able to prepare and discuss each item on the agenda. 
Krka's professional services helped organise the meetings, while 
promptly implementing improvements and support.

The members attended meetings regularly. Apart from two 
male members who were absent twice, both times on justifiable 
grounds and two female members who were absent once each, 
again both on justifiable grounds, all members attended all board 
meetings in 2013. The Board was twice joined by certified audi-
tors from the auditing firm Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno sve-
tovanje, d. o. o., Ljubljana, whereas board meetings are usually 
only attended by members of the Supervisory Board and Man-
agement Board and by the Secretary to the Supervisory Board.

In the 40 items on its agenda in 2013 the Supervisory Board 
discussed Krka's past operations, the Krka Group’s Develop-
ment Strategy for 2014–2018 and plans for 2014, was promptly 
informed about human resources, investments, products and 
implementation of the current strategy, and followed expert 
opinions about Krka and the operations of its competitors, 
and kept up to date with new developments in the Company, 
the pharmaceutical industry and the business environment. 
Through a self-evaluation according to the methodology of the 
Slovenian Directors' Association and by attending training on 
new legislation, the Supervisory Board again strengthened the 
good practice of its operations in 2013. 

The areas most discussed by the Supervisory Board members 
in 2013 were:

The Annual Report Within the statutory time frame, the Super-
visory Board thoroughly examined the 2012 report of the Com-

Dear Shareholders,

Jože Lenič MSc, President of the Supervisory Board
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pany and the Krka Group, and discussed the auditor's report in 
which the auditor Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno svetovanje, 
d. o. o., Ljubljana found that the financial statements which form 
part of the Annual Report give a true and fair view of the finan-
cial position of the Krka Company and Krka Group, their oper-
ating profit, cash flow and changes in equity. The Board had 
no comments on the auditor's work and the report. The Board 
also compiled and adopted a report on its work in 2012 and, 
together with the Management Board, drew up the Krka State-
ment of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and 
the Code of Best Practice for Warsaw Stock Exchange Listed 
Companies. Krka also received an award for the best annual 
report among large companies for 2012. 

Interim results The Supervisory Board regularly reviewed the first-
quarter, half-year and nine-month reports of the operations of the 
Krka Company and Group. The Audit Committee considered the 
accounting and financial aspects of the interim results and reported 
to the Supervisory Board on all interim operational results.

Supervising the operations of subsidiaries in the Krka Group 
The Supervisory Board was informed of the business model and 
operations of all large subsidiaries in 2012. The members were 
also informed about the number of employees in the subsidiar-
ies and the book value of Krka's investments in them, the com-
position of the management of the companies and, in terms of 
operating data, especially the value of inventories, assets, equity, 
operating revenues and operating charges as well as the sub-
sidiaries’ operating profit/loss and net operating results.

Long- and short-term operating plan of the Krka Group  
Every year the Management Board draws up an operating plan 
of the Krka Company and Group and updates the Krka Group’s 
development strategy every two years. The Management Board 
informs the Supervisory Board about the operating plan and 
the updated development strategy each time and the Supervi-
sory Board comments and gives recommendations which the 
Management Board considers to the greatest extent possible. In 
2013 the Supervisory Board discussed the Krka Group’s devel-
opment strategy 2014–2018, which includes strategic goals and 
the strategies to achieve them for all business functions and an 
operating plan of the Krka Company and Group for 2014.

Convening and holding the Annual General Meeting Together 
with the Management Board, the Supervisory Board drafted the 
agenda and contents for the AGM, and prepared a proposal for 
the distribution of accumulated profit. The Board proposed that 
the AGM discharge the Management and Supervisory Board 
from liability for 2012, and that Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno 
svetovanje, d. o. o., Ljubljana be appointed the auditors for 2013. 

Investments The Supervisory Board was regularly informed 
about all the Group's major investments from the first-quarter, 
half-year, nine-months and annual operating reports and 
additional areas, especially the major investments of the Krka 
Group, which are Notol 2, Krka-Rus 2, Sinteza 1 in Krško, 
the European project Farma GRS, and partially about smaller 
investments. The Management Board reported to the Supervi-
sory Board on the progress of investment projects, their value 
and any challenges that were promptly dealt with. 

Risks The Board was informed of the state of claims lodged 
against Krka and its subsidiaries by other pharmaceutical com-

panies for individual products and countries, and also of other 
similar procedures. 

Business trends in the pharmaceutical industry The Super-
visory Board was informed of the findings of 12 business ana-
lyses of Krka performed by leading investment banks which, 
in addition to costs and benefits the analysts identified with 
respect to Krka's operations, provided independent assess-
ments of the fair value of Krka shares and Krka operations. The 
Board was also informed of current, relevant information from 
the pharmaceutical industry. 

Benchmarking Krka’s performance with comparable com-
panies Twice in 2013 the Supervisory Board compared the 
Krka Group’s performance results with six or seven select inter-
national pharmaceutical companies with a particular focus on 
comparing the sales data, sales structure by regions and prod-
uct groups, profitability information, cost structure, structure 
of the statement of financial position, ratios related to Krka's 
share, and other frequently used financial ratios.

Areas of current interest The Supervisory Board considers 
all relevant areas of operation when reviewing interim reports 
and the annual report. A few times a year the Board additi-
onally examines a selected area. In 2013 the Board closely 
examined detailed, up-to-date information regarding human 
resources, investments and products, along with information 
on realisation of the strategy and the Works Council report on 
worker participation in management. 

The work and remuneration of the Management Board  The 
Supervisory Board regularly monitored the work of the Manage-
ment Board, and particularly closely twice a year when setting 
the variable amount of the members' salaries pursuant to the 
Rules. At the meeting in November 2013 the Supervisory Board 
also checked the adequacy of reference values for setting the 
variable amount of the Management Board members' salaries. 
A performance bonus model was created that considers quan-
titative and qualitative indicators. Quantitative indicators primarily 
include sales growth (also in relative terms in view of comparable 
companies), increases in cash flows from operations, operating 
profit and return on equity in 2014 in comparison with the com-
petition. Qualitative indicators include activities in new indication 
areas, the implementation of new requirements related to quality, 
regulatory and other areas, entry into new markets, new product 
launches, as well as social corporate responsibility, Krka's repu-
tation, investor relations and public relations.

Shares and shareholding structure Each quarter, the Super-
visory Board reviewed the report on the acquisition of treasury 
shares, the current shareholding structure and the Company's 
share price. The Board was also informed about the calendar 
of closed trading windows when persons with access to insider 
information are not allowed to trade in Krka’s shares.

Strengthening the good practice of Supervisory Board 
operations In 2013 the Supervisory Board performed a peri-
odic self-assessment according to the methodology of the 
Slovenian Directors' Association for the third consecutive 
time. The Board adopted an action plan until the next self-
assessment in 2014 and carried out the activities from the pre-
vious action plan. In December 2013 the Supervisory Board 
members attended training on current corporate governance 
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legislation organised by the Slovenian Directors' Association. 
The Management Board prepared some additional information 
which the members evaluated as important in the self-evalua-
tion report. Consistent with good practice, the members filled 
out a questionnaire on conflicts of interest as stipulated in the 
Corporate Governance Code. Krka posted their statements on 
the Company's website. 

The Supervisory Board also regularly discussed other current 
matters related to Krka and the industry. 

Krka's events In addition to the Annual General Meeting and the 
ceremony for the traditional annual Krka Prizes awarded for the 
best undergraduate and postgraduate research works, the mem-
bers attended business and social events organised by Krka.

The work of Supervisory Board 
committees  
The Supervisory Board appointed the Audit Committee and the 
Human Resources Committee, which deal in detail with account-
ing, auditing, finance and human resource issues. The committees 
report to and advise the Supervisory Board, while the decision-
making remains under the authority of the Supervisory Board. 

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is presided over by Mojca Osolnik 
Videmšek. In 2013 the Committee met five times and discussed 
25 agenda items. 

The Committee invited the President of the Management Board, 
the President of the Supervisory Board, the member of the Man-
agement Board in charge of accounting and controlling, and the 
Head of the Internal Audit to all its meetings. The Secretary to the 
Supervisory Board attended all of the meetings while two meet-
ings were also attended by representatives of the audit firm Ernst 
& Young Revizija, poslovno svetovanje, d. o. o., Ljubljana. 

The areas most discussed by the Audit Committee in 2013 were:

The Annual Report The Committee considered the Annual 
Report of the Krka Company and the Krka Group for 2012, 
the auditor's report and the Supervisory Board report for 2012 
and proposed that the Supervisory Board adopt them.

Interim Results At all discussions of the interim reports, the 
Audit Committee primarily discussed them with regard to 
accounting and finance and reported about them to the Super-
visory Board. In 2013 there were no accounting or financial 
special characteristics or changes to past practice. 

Accounting policies and co-operation with the external 
auditor The Audit Committee closely considers the co-oper-
ation with the certified auditor. Consistent with good practice, 
the President and a member of the Committee met with audi-
tors from Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno svetovanje, d. o. o., 
Ljubljana and proposed the areas of business which needed 
to be carefully examined in the regular operations audit for 
2013. They were also informed about the course of the annual 
audit, particularly the composition of the team of auditors and 
their planned activities and schedule. The Committee regularly 

monitored how the external auditing was being conducted. In 
November 2013 the certified auditor reported to the Committee 
about the pre-audit for 2013. 

Internal auditing The Audit Committee also closely co-oper-
ates with the external auditor and with Krka's Internal Audit. 
In 2013 it considered and approved the reports on the work 
of Internal Audit in 2012, the work of Internal Audit for Janu-
ary–June 2013, the plan of Internal Audit for 2014, and the 
medium-term plan of Internal Audit for the period 2014–2018. 
The Committee also reviewed the self-evaluation report by 
Internal Audit for 2012.

Current issues Similarly to the Supervisory Board, the Audit 
Committee also reviews statutory reports and other reports 
useful to the Committee’s work. In 2013 the Management 
Board presented the controlling process in the Krka Group 
to the Audit Committee in great detail. 

Annual General Meeting  The Audit Committee discussed 
the appointment of the auditor for the 2013 financial year and 
suggested that at the General Meeting the Supervisory Board 
propose the audit firm Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno sve-
tovanje, d. o. o., Ljubljana as the auditor.

Human Resource Committee
Presided over by Mateja Vrečer PhD, the Human Resource 
Committee met three times in 2013 and discussed 10 agenda 
items. The President of the Management Board, the President 
of the Supervisory Board, the Management Board member in 
charge of accounting and controlling and the Secretary to the 
Supervisory Board were invited to all meetings.  

In 2013 the Committee especially examined the Management 
Board’s remuneration. The Committee considered legislative 
changes to management board remuneration and performance 
bonuses and reported to the Supervisory Board. The Commit-
tee also proposed to the Supervisory Board the amount of the 
performance bonus for the President of the Management Board 
and its members for 2012 and the first half of 2013. 

Evaluation of the work of  
the Management and 
Supervisory Boards
In line with current legislation and good practice, in particular 
the Corporate Governance Code, the guidelines of the Slov-
enian Directors' Association and the Code of Best Practice for 
Warsaw Stock Exchange Listed Companies, the Supervisory 
Board comprehensively monitored Krka's management and 
operations throughout 2013.  

The Management Board attended all meetings of the Super-
visory Board. The President reported on each agenda item in 
great detail and answered any questions posed by the Supervi-
sory Board members, while other members of the Management 
Board provided further information regarding their professional 
area of interest. Communication between the President of the 
Management Board and the President of the Supervisory Board 
extended beyond meetings.  
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The Supervisory Board members were presented with all the 
necessary data, reports and information, and the Management 
Board prepared extended or additional reports at their request. 
They received the materials approximately one week before 
a meeting. Krka's professional services organised meetings, 
made prompt technical improvements and provided adminis-
trative and other due support.  

The Supervisory Board regularly monitored the Management 
Board’s work in 2013 and evaluated it upon each discussion of 
interim results, compared Krka's operations with competitors 
and considered external analysts’ opinions about Krka, and 
as a separate agenda item for setting the performance bonus 
based on eight performance measures. The Management 
Board was fully committed to the best possible performance 
and results of the Company and Group and co-operated with 
the Supervisory Board in an exemplary manner.     

In addition to evaluating the Management Board’s work, the 
Supervisory Board also paid considerable attention to the con-
tinuous improvement of its work. In July 2013 it engaged in 
a self-assessment for the third consecutive time according to 
the methodology of the Slovenian Directors' Association and, 
as with the previous self-assessments, carried out improve-
ments suggested by the members. The self-assessment of 
2013 revealed that the Supervisory Board’s operations are of 
the highest standards in nearly all areas. The average mark rose 
by 2% compared to the previous self-assessment. The Super-
visory Board also monitors the area of conflicting interests. 
In line with the Corporate Governance Code, the members 
completed statements on independence which Krka published 
and which reveal that, with 8 out of 9, most members of the 
Board are independent. Should a conflict of interest occur, the 
Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Board stipulate that the 
Supervisory Board may resolve the matter by preventing a par-
ticular member from voting on an agenda item. There was one 
instance of a conflict of interest in 2013 when a board mem-
ber abstained from voting on the matter of taking out liability 
insurance because the company in which this member was the 
President of the Management Board was one of the bidders. 

EUR 233,670 was allocated for the work of the Supervisory 
Board and its committees, whereas EUR 236,753 was spent. 
Of this amount, EUR 7,000 was spent on membership in the 
Slovenian Directors' Association. No other costs, for example 
for external advisors, were incurred.

Approval of the Annual Report 
and proposal for the allocation 
of the 2013 accumulated profit
The Draft Annual Report of the Krka Company and the Krka 
Group for 2013 was considered by the Supervisory Board and 
the Audit Committee at their meetings of 26 February 2014.

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Audit Com-
mittee received the proposed clean copy of the Annual Report 
on 19 March 2014 and reviewed it at the meeting of 26 March 
2014. The representatives of the certified auditor reported to 
the Committee and the Supervisory Board. 

Based on the proposed copy of the Annual Report, the auditor's 
report and the Audit Committee review, the Supervisory Board 
found that the Management Board's Annual Report truly reflects 
the events and gives a comprehensive view of the operations of 
the Krka Company and the Krka Group in 2013, and provides 
extended information that was otherwise sent to the Board 
throughout the financial year. Since the Supervisory Board had 
no comments or reservations, the Annual Report was unani-
mously approved at the meeting of 26 March 2014. The Annual 
Report was thereby formally adopted in line with Article 282 of 
the Companies Act and Krka's Articles of Association.

Simultaneously with approving the Annual Report, the Super-
visory Board also approved the proposal for the allocation of 
accumulated profit. In 2013 the Krka Company achieved a net 
profit of EUR 164,672,755.67, of which EUR 13,715,825.53 
was appropriated to reserves for treasury shares, and  
EUR 34,000,000.00 to other revenue reserves. The remaining 
net profit of EUR 116,956,930.14 and the retained net profit of 
EUR 62,395,491.25 comprise the accumulated profit, which on 
31 December 2013 stood at EUR 179,352,421.39.

The Management Board and the Supervisory Board propose 
that the General Meeting distributes the accumulated profit 
as follows:

–	 EUR 68,908,392.00 for dividends or EUR 2.10 gross per share;
–	 EUR 55,222,014.70 for other revenue reserves; and
–	 EUR 55,222,014.69 for retained earnings.

The proposal was drawn up by considering the number of 
treasury shares on 26 March 2014 when the Krka Supervisory 
Board confirmed the 2013 Annual Report and together with the 
Management Board prepared a proposal for the allocation of 
accumulated profit. As the number of treasury shares is subject 
to change, the number of ex-dividend shares will be disclosed 
on the day of the Annual General Meeting. The total amount to 
be allocated to dividends, other revenue reserves and retained 
earnings will be altered accordingly.

Conclusion
Among many good companies in the pharmaceutical industry, 
Krka stands out with its sound business operations, very low 
debt, a vertically integrated business model, a cutting-edge 
range of products sold in over 70 markets, and good corporate 
governance. The Supervisory Board members assess Krka’s 
operations in 2013 as successful and trustworthy.

Jože Lenič MSc
President of the Supervisory Board 
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Krka, d. d., Novo mesto

Registered office Šmarješka cesta 6, 8501 Novo mesto, Slovenia

Telephone ++386 7 331 21 11

Fax ++386 7 332 15 37

E-mail info@krka.biz

Website www.krka.si

Core business production of pharmaceutical preparations

Business clarification code 21.200

Year established 1954

Registration entry                                                                                    1/00097/00, District Court of Novo mesto

Tax number 82646716

VAT number SI82646716

Company ID number 5043611

Share capital EUR 59,126,194.28 

Total number of shares issued 35,426,120 ordinary registered no-par value shares

Data on the controlling company   

The Krka Group consists of the controlling company, Krka, d. d., 
Novo mesto, two subsidiaries in Slovenia, i.e. Terme Krka,  
d. o. o., Novo mesto and Farma GRS, d. o. o., and 26 subsidiar-
ies outside Slovenia. Farma GRS is the sole owner of two other 
micro companies. The Group is engaged in the development, 
production, marketing and sales of human health products 
(prescription pharmaceuticals and non-prescription products), 
animal health products, and health resort and tourist services. 

Production takes place in the controlling company in Slovenia 
and in Krka subsidiaries in the Russian Federation, Poland, 
Croatia and Germany. In addition to production, all of these 
subsidiaries, apart from Krka-Rus in the Russian Federation, 
pursue marketing and sales. Other subsidiaries outside Slo-
venia deal with the marketing and/or sales of Krka products 
and do not have production capacities. 

Terme Krka, d. o. o., Novo mesto deals with health resort and 
tourist services. It operates through the following branches: 
Terme Dolenjske Toplice, Terme Šmarješke Toplice, Hoteli 
Otočec, Hotel Krka in Novo mesto, and Talaso Strunjan. Terme 
Krka is also the majority owner of Golf Grad Otočec, d. o. o. 

In October 2013, Krka established a subsidiary in Bulgaria. 
Krka is its controlling company and sole owner. 

ID card of the Krka Group
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Krka Group  
business model  
Krka is one of the world's leading generic pharmaceutical com-
panies. It is domiciled in Slovenia and has a 60-year tradition.
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Krka is the market leader in its domestic market. Its presence is 
also significant in the generic pharmaceutical markets of:

•	 Eastern Europe – the Russian Federation and Ukraine;
•	 Central Europe – Poland, the Czech Republic and  

Hungary; and 
•	 South-Eastern Europe – Croatia and Romania.

Over the past few years, we have strengthened our pres-
ence in Western European markets, in particular in Germany, 
France, Great Britain, Scandinavia, Benelux, Italy, Portugal  
and Spain.

Our production and distribution facilities are in Slovenia,  
the Russian Federation, Poland, Croatia and Germany. 

Economically and with our 
own financial means

Sales growth exceeded the 
growth in operating expenses. 
Our cost-effective range of modern products 
and encouragement of all employees to 
use assets rationally contributed to more 
economical business operations.  
The operating expenses of the Krka Group 
rose by just 2%, while sales of products and 
services were up 5%. 

157 
million for investments.

We financed investments with our own 
assets without incurring debt. The largest 
investment was Notol 2 in Novo mesto, which 
will contribute 4.5 billion products to the total 
annual production. Notol 2 is worth EUR 200 
million, Krka-Rus 2 in the Russian Federation 
EUR 135 million, while the API production 
plant in Krško is worth EUR 85 million.

In 2013 we earmarked EUR 
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Slovenia
South-East Europe
East Europe
Central Europe
West Europe and Overseas Markets

23.6%

7.2%

12.1%

21.5%

35.6%

Sales by Regions in 2013

Prescription pharmaceuticals
Non-prescription products
Animal health products
Health resort and tourist services 

81.8%

3.6%
2.5%12.1%

Sales by groups of products and services in 2013 

BUSINESS ORIENTATION
Our modern pharmaceutical production and vertically inte-
grated business model permits us to provide patients in more 
than 70 countries with a wide range of safe, high quality and 
effective prescription pharmaceuticals, non-prescription 
products and animal health products. Most Krka products are 
in solid dosage pharmaceutical forms. The Company’s range 
is supplemented by the health-resort and tourist services of 
Terme Krka.

We focus on generic prescription pharmaceuticals marketed 
under Krka’s own brands. Our main therapeutic groups 
include pharmaceuticals for cardiovascular diseases, phar-
maceuticals for alimentary and metabolic diseases, and phar-
maceuticals for diseases of the central nervous system, and 
we have also entered certain new therapeutic areas. 

In the future, we will continue to concentrate on marketing and 
developing our own marketing-and-sales network by founding 
our own companies or through mergers in target markets. Our 
objective is to strengthen the Krka Group’s market position in 
Europe and in the markets of Central Asia, as well as to enter 
new high-potential markets. Our new sales region, Overseas 
Markets, will aim to exploit the sales potential of the Middle 
East, Far East, Africa and the Americas.

In order to increase the competitive advantage of our prod-
uct portfolio and maintain a large share of vertically integrated 
products, Krka has been allocating 8 to 10% of its revenues 
to research and development. Krka has more than 170 new 
products in the pipeline. A large share of revenue is generated 
by sales of new products, i.e. products launched on different 
markets in the past five years. 
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Krka Group 
organisation chart

Farma GRS,  
d. o. o., 

Novo mesto

TERME KRKA,  
d. o. o.,  

Novo mesto

SLOVENIA

The chart includes companies in operation as at 1 January 2014.

Croatia
KRKA-FARMA d.o.o.

Romania
KRKA ROMANIA S.R.L.

Serbia
KRKA-FARMA DOO BEOGRAD

Macedonia
KRKA-FARMA DOOEL, Skopje

Germany
TAD Pharma GmbH 

Sweden
Krka Sverige AB 

Austria
KRKA Pharma GmbH, Wien 

Ireland
KRKA PHARMA DUBLIN LIMITED

Portugal
KRKA Farmacêutica, Unipessoal Lda.

Russian Federation
KRKA-RUS LLC

Russian Federation
KRKA FARMA LLC

Ukraine
KRKA UKRAINE LLC 

Kazakhstan
LLC "KRKA KAZAKHSTAN"

EAST 
EUROPE

USA
KRKA USA LLC

OVERSEAS 
MARKETS

Production and distribution companies

Health resort and tourist services company

Other subsidiaries outside Slovenia

EU project: research and development company

SOUTH-EAST 
EUROPE

Poland
KRKA - POLSKA, Sp. z o.o.

Czech Republic  
KRKA ČR, s. r. o.

Hungary
KRKA Magyarország Kft.

Slovakia
KRKA Slovensko, s.r.o. 

CENTRAL 
EUROPE

Lithuania
UAB KRKA Lietuva

Latvia
SIA KRKA Latvija

Bosnia and Herzegovina
KRKA FARMA d.o.o., Sarajevo

Bulgaria
KRKA Bulgaria EOOD

Spain
KRKA FARMACÉUTICA, S.L.

Italy
KRKA FARMACEUTICI MILANO S.r.l. 

France
KRKA France Eurl

Belgium
KRKA Belgium, SA

WEST  
EUROPE

KRKA, d. d.,  
Novo mesto
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For the second time in a row, we 
organised the socially responsible 
campaign Krka's Week of Charity and 
Volunteering. In the past two years, the 
campaign’s various charity actions have 
brought more than 1,300 employees 
together under the slogan Charity Is Also 
a Part of Us.

During Krka's Week of Charity and 
Volunteering, we released 14 automatic 
external defibrillators (AEDs) for use. 
These electronic devices may stop  
life-threatening arrhythmia during  
a cardiac arrest. 

At the 18th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, the participants approved the 
proposed dividend per share in a gross 
total of EUR 1.61.

In the Russian Federation, the new 
distribution centre Krka-Rus 2 started 
providing its services.

As part of the 43rd Krka Prizes, we 
awarded the best secondary school 
research projects and the best 
undergraduate and postgraduate 
research projects.

Krka successfully passed the 18th audit 
of its integrated management system 
conducted by the Slovenian Institute of 
Quality and Metrology (SIQ). The auditors 
inspected five management systems 
adapted to the requirements of various 
standards (ISO 9001, ISO 14001, HACCP, 
BS OHSAS 18001 and ISO/IEC 27001).

In 2013, we again organised a meeting 
with the locals of Novo mesto.  
We presented our activities, results  
and plans, especially those with a close 
relationship to environmental protection.

For the seventh successive time we 
arranged the traditional gathering of 
local sponsored parties. We briefed 
their representatives on our business 
performance and other activities of 
the Company. Good practices were 
exchanged, which further strengthened 
our co-operation.

At the traditional Krka Awards Day, we 
awarded plaques to our long-standing 
employees, best employees, best 
managers, and the proposers of the best 
innovations and proposals to thank them 
for their services.

We organised a gathering of the 
proposers of the best innovations and 
proposals. Inventive work has formed 
part of Krka’s culture since it was 
established. In the last decade, we have 
had a special system in place for the 
even more intensive encouragement of 
inventive work.

We presented awards to Krka’s best 
male and female volunteers of 2013 for 
the second consecutive time. In line with 
the already established tradition, we also 
thanked all Krka’s long-standing blood 
donors on the occasion.

Krka is the only company in Slovenia 
that examines and approves the 
skills required to acquire the national 
vocational qualification (NVQ) certificates 
for the pharmaceutical industry. At the 
end of 2013, we awarded certificates to 
139 employees who had successfully 
completed their training in three NVQ 
programmes: production process 
worker in the pharmaceutical industry, 
process worker in the production 
of pharmaceutical ingredients, 
pharmaceutical logistics process worker. 

Overview of significant events 

Events 
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Prizes and awards

The Slovenian media company Dnevnik 
conducted a research project Zlata nit 
2012 (Golden Thread) and awarded Krka 
as the best employer in the category of 
large companies. 

The Slovenian Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry awarded Krka at the 11th 
Innovation Day with the Golden Award for 
the bilayer tablets with a combination of 
two active substances for the treatment 
of hypertension. 

The Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
of Dolenjska and Bela krajina awarded Krka 
two Golden Awards and one Silver Award 
for the best innovations in 2012. The golden 
awards were given for the innovations: 
“Bilayer tablets with a combination of 
two active substances for treatment 
of hypertension” and “Stable aqueous 
formulation containing a low soluble active 
substance”. The Silver Award was granted 
for the development of new separation 
processes based on two-phase media for 
application in the pharmaceutical industry.

According to research conducted by the 
Kline & Partner marketing agency, Krka 
was once again ranked at the top of the 
most renowned Slovenian companies. 

We received a Bronze Effie Award in the 
Russian Federation for marketing and 
communications strategies for Nalgesin. 
The award proved that our marketing 
solutions are successful and creative.

Planet GV and SOFOS, Inštitut za 
izobraževalni management (the Institute 
for Educational Management) together 
organised the annual meeting of 
teaching professionals where Krka was 
presented a Top-10 Award for systematic 
investments in employee training. 

The Slovenian business daily Finance 
organised the 14th consecutive competition 
for the best annual report. Krka won top 
prize for the best 2012 annual report in 
the category of large companies, and the 
commission also awarded Krka’s annual 
report as the best annual report of all 
companies in the area of communications.

•	 The uncertainty of business operations in the Ukrainian 
market has increased.

•	 In February 2014, Krka's subsidiary in Sweden, Krka 
Sverige AB, received the decision of the Appeal Court 
from Oslo on the dispute between AstraZeneca AB 
and Krka Sverige AB over the alleged infringement of 
patent right NO 307 378 protecting the special purity 
level of medicine containing the active substance 
esomeprazole. The Appeal Court from Oslo ruled that 
the subsidiary Krka Sverige had infringed the patent 
right. Krka Sverige was selling the product Esomeprazol 
Krka in Norway from October to December 2010, so 
it was ordered to compensate the company Astra 
Zeneca for lost profit and legal expenses in a total of 
approximately EUR 2 million. Krka has filed an appeal 
with the Supreme Court of Norway. The claimed liability 
is included in the consolidated accounting statements 
of the Krka Group for 2013.

•	 On 1 January 2014, Krka’s five sales regions were 
complemented with another one. Our sixth sales region, 
Overseas Markets, aims to exploit the sales potential of 
the Middle East, Far East, Africa, and the Americas.

•	 In the period from 2 January 2014 to 31 January 2014 
(followed by the Close Period), we acquired 51,595 
treasury shares in a total value of EUR 3,180,371.97. 
The holding currently totals 2,612,600 treasury shares 
(7.375% of all shares).

At the 28th Selection of Best Managers and 
Companies in Southeast Europe in Sarajevo, 
the President of the Management Board and 
Chief Executive, Jože Colarič, was awarded 
Best Manager of the Decade Award.

The Chamber of Commerce of Dolenjska 
and Bela krajina presented the Director of 
Human Resources, Boris Dular, an award 
for human resource management.

Univerzitetno središče Novo mesto (the 
University and Research Centre Novo 
mesto) presented the Nahtigal Award 
to Dr Franc Vrečer, Assistant Director 
for Research and Development, and Dr 
Aleš Gasparič, Head of Biochemistry, for 
their long-standing mentorship of young 
people in the production of doctoral 
dissertations, master’s theses, specialist 
and degree-awarding works.

Events after the  
accounting period

and awards in 2013



Our advantage 
is our vertically 
integrated  
business model.



17 
new products in 35 pharmaceutical forms.

515 
new marketing authorisations.

Krka's strategic objective by 2018  
is to retain the largest share possible of  
vertically integrated products. 

We develop medicinal products from active 
ingredients through to finished products and 
obtain marketing authorisations in  
several markets.

In 2013 we acquired  
marketing authorisations for 

An important contributor to our process 
efficiency and competitiveness is the verti-
cally integrated business model. We use it 
to plan and control the entire process:

• customer demands; 

• development and research;  

• production of raw materials;  

• supplies (purchases);  

• production;  

• warehousing;  

• quality control;  

• quality assurance;

• distribution;

• marketing and sales; and  

• customer satisfaction monitoring.

In all markets we obtained 
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Krka's corporate governance principles are based on a two-tier 
system in which the Management Board manages the Com-
pany and is controlled by the Supervisory Board. The corpo-
rate governance is based on the legislation of the Republic of 
Slovenia, Slovenian and international good practices, the Com-
pany’s publicly available Corporate Governance Policy and its 
internal acts.

The Company’s governing bodies are the:

•	 Annual General Meeting;
•	 Supervisory Board; and
•	 Management Board.

Annual General Meeting
Pursuant to provisions of the Slovenian Companies Act, the 
Annual General Meeting is the Company's highest body. This is 
where shareholders participate in the Company's governance 
and where all fundamental and statutory decisions are taken. 
Each share, except for treasury shares, represents one vote at 
the general meeting. Krka has one share class only: ordinary 
no-par value shares.

The Management Board calls the Annual General Meeting 
once a year, issuing the notice at least 30 days before the 
due date. Access to the complete materials for each AGM is 
available at the Company's registered office from the day the 
AGM notice is issued.

All shareholders entered in the shareholder register as of the date 
of record, which is published in the notice, have the right to attend 
the AGM and vote, as do their representatives and proxies.

At the Annual General Meeting, the Management Board pro-
vides shareholders with all the information they require to assess 
the contents of the agenda, taking all legal or other restrictions 
on the disclosure of information into account.

The 18th AGM of the Company was held on 4 July 2013. The 
shareholders:

•	 received information about the 2012 Annual Report, the re-
muneration of Management and Supervisory Board mem-
bers, the auditor's report, and the report of the Supervisory 
Board on its verification and approval of the 2012 Annual 
Report;

•	 adopted the resolution on the appropriation of accumu-
lated profit for 2012;

•	 discharged the Management and Supervisory Boards 
from liability in 2012;

•	 appointed the auditor for 2013; and
•	 discussed the proposals motioned by two shareholders in their 

request to extend the AGM agenda, i.e. to withdraw treasury 

shares, to revoke the resolution adopted at the 16th AGM con-
cerning the authorisation for acquisition of treasury shares, to 
replace the said motion with a new one, and to amend the Ar-
ticles of Association – the AGM did not pass those motions. 
They also discussed the counter-proposal regarding the ap-
propriation of accumulated profit, but did not pass it. 

The resolutions adopted by the 18th AGM were published in 
the Delo newspaper, on the SEOnet and ESPI, in the Polish 
information dissemination system, and on the Krka website 
(http://www.krka.biz/en/for-investors/documents/general-
meetings/18th-annual-general-meeting-notice/5721/).

According to the financial calendar for 2014, this year’s Annual 
General Meeting is due on 3 July. The call for the AGM and the 
proposed resolutions, the place of the meeting and eligibility 
conditions will be published in the Ljubljana Stock Exchange’s 
SEOnet system, the Warsaw Stock Exchange ESPI system, the 
Delo newspaper, and on the Krka website.

Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board supervises the Company’s operations 
and business management, and selects and appoints mem-
bers of the Management Board. The Supervisory Board meets 
at least four times a year, usually after each quarter.

Its composition is stipulated by the Company's Articles of 
Association. It is composed of nine members: six are elected 
by the Annual General Meeting, and three employee representa-
tives are elected by the Krka Works Council. The President of 
the Supervisory Board is always elected by Board members 
appointed by the AGM. Supervisory Board members are 
appointed for a five-year term and may be reappointed. Since 
the term of office of the previous Board came to a close, the  
15th Annual General Meeting elected the current Supervisory 
Board for a term of office of five years, starting on 21 June 2010.

The Supervisory Board’s work complies with the legislation, 
the recommendations of professional associations, especially 
the Slovenian Directors' Association, and other good practice 
recommendations, particularly the Slovenian Corporate Gov-
ernance Code.

Corporate Governance 
Statement

THE CURRENT SUPERVISORY BOARD WAS 
APPOINTED IN 2010 FOR A FIVE-YEAR TERM.

The salaries, reimbursement and other benefits of Supervisory 
Board members do not directly depend on the Company's 
performance and are disclosed in the Financial Report in the 
Note entitled Related Party Transactions. Consistent with good 
practice, Supervisory Board members not only receive meeting 
attendance fees, but also earn fixed payments for their function. 
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The amounts are specified in the resolutions of the 16th AGM.

Members of the Supervisory Board report any acquisition or 
disposal of Company shares they make to the Company and 
competent institutions, and Krka publishes this information. 
Under Related Party Transactions in the Financial Report we 
disclose how many Krka shares are held by Supervisory Board 
members.

Members of the Supervisory Board pursue the Company's 
objectives in their work, and must subordinate any personal inter-
ests or interests of third parties to them. All members of the Krka 
Supervisory Board have completed the C3 survey of the Slove-
nian Corporate Governance Code, which is available on the Krka 
website. The Supervisory Board members' conduct in cases of 
conflicts of interest is defined in the amended Rules of Procedure 
of the Supervisory Board, available at http://www.krka.biz/en/for-
investors/documents/corporate-governance-documents/.

The composition and operations of the Supervisory Board and its 
committees in 2013 are presented in the Supervisory Board report. 

SHAREHOLDER REPRESENTATIVES

Jože Lenič MSc
President of the Supervisory Board

Jože Lenič MSc, born in 1965, is from Domžale. He holds a 
master’s degree in international economics. He graduated in 
geography, and is a professor of geology. He started his pro-

fessional career in the private company Oikos, d. o. o., before 
assuming the position of President of the Executive Council of 
the Municipality of Domžale. From December 1992 to Janu-
ary 2000 he was a member of the National Assembly of the 
Republic of Slovenia. He also worked as a consultant to the 
Management Board of SKB banka. He acted as President of 
the Management Board of Kapitalska družba for several years. 
From December 2003 to June 2005 he was President of the 
Management Board of Zavarovalnica Triglav, and was then 
employed as a consultant to the Management Board of Triglav 
Reinsurance. He continued his career in insurance at Aksum 
where he led and collaborated on consultancy projects. Since 
January 2011 he has been President of the Management Board 
of Abanka Vipa d. d.

In 2003 he was certified by the Slovenian Directors’ Association 
(A and B licences).

He has been a member of the supervisory boards of Lek, Sava, 
NLB banka, Intereuropa, Delo, the Slovenian Insurance Asso-
ciation, and several Zavarovalnica Triglav subsidiaries.

Matjaž Rakovec
Deputy President of the Supervisory Board

Born in 1964, Matjaž Rakovec is from Stanežiče pri Ljubljani. 
A graduate economist, he initially worked for a year as a sole 
trader before being employed as an independent salesman, first 
by Intertrade d. d. and then by Anga, d. o. o., both in Ljubljana. 
In 1994 he was employed by the Ljubljana regional unit of the 

From left to right (front): Prof. Julijana Kristl PhD, Jože Lenič MSc, Mojca Osolnik Videmšek, Mateja Vrečer PhD, Assoc. Prof. Sergeja Slapničar PhD  
From left to right (back): Tomaž Sever MSc, Matjaž Rakovec, Vincenc Manček and Franc Šašek
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insurance company Zavarovalnica Triglav, d. d., as Assistant 
Director and Head of Marketing Insurance to Businesses. He 
was also in charge of IT. He also worked for Studio Moderna, 
d. o. o., and acted as a consultant to the Management Board 
of Mercator, d. d. In 2006 he became Director of the Ljubljana 
regional unit of Zavarovalnica Triglav, and from 2009 to the end 
of May 2013 he functioned as President of the Management 
Board of Zavarovalnica Triglav.

In 2012 he was certified by the Slovenian Directors’ Associa-
tion. He is also a member of several sports societies and social 
organisations. 

Mojca Osolnik Videmšek
President of the Supervisory Board Audit Committee

Mojca Osolnik Videmšek, born in 1966, is from Ljubljana.  
A graduate economist, she started her career as the head of 
marketing in the metal manufacturing section of the company 
DEKOP in Novo mesto. In 1993 she was employed by the 
Government of the Republic of Slovenia where she headed the 
Prime Minister’s Office for five years. She then served briefly 
as Secretary General of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs. For a 
year and a half, she also worked as the director of the Prime 
Minister’s Office. 

In February 2003, she started work for Nova Ljubljanska banka 
(NLB) in various positions. Among others, she worked for five 
years as Secretary General of NLB and for four years directed 
the bank’s sector for capital investments management and con-
trol. In this period, she also served as chairperson or member of 
supervisory bodies and audit committees in several companies 
of the NLB Group. At the beginning of 2014, she assumed the 
posts of director of the Directorate and advisor to the Manage-
ment Board President at Gorenjska banka, d. d., Kranj. 

She is certified by the Slovenian Directors’ Association. Since 
2008 she has acted as deputy president of the Management 
Committee of the Slovenian Directors’ Association. For one 
term of office, she was a member of the supervisory board of 
Kapitalska družba, d. d., Ljubljana, and is a supervisory board 
member of Krka, d. d., Novo mesto. 

Assoc. Prof. Sergeja Slapničar PhD

Born in 1971, Associate Professor Sergeja Slapničar PhD 
is from Lesce. She holds a doctorate in management and 
organisation. She started her career as an intern at Deloitte 
& Touche Ljubljana in 1994. In 1995 she was employed as an 
assistant for accountancy and auditing by the Faculty of Eco-
nomics at the University of Ljubljana, where she still works as 
an associate professor and a lecturer for several subjects. She 
is the author of a number of scientific and professional works, 
and a member of the European Accounting Association and 
the American Accounting Association (EAA and AAA). 

Since June 2013, she has been a member of the Supervisory 
Board of NLB and for the second term in office the President 
of the Settlement Committee under Article 609 of the Com-

panies Act of Slovenia (ZGD-1) for examining share exchange 
ratios applied in company ownership transformations. She is 
a lecturer at the Slovenian Directors’ Association and gives 
lectures in director training courses. In the period from 2008 
to 2012 she was a member of the Council of Experts at the 
Agency for the Public Oversight of Auditing.

Vincenc Manček

Vincenc Manček, born in 1943, is from Novo mesto. After com-
pleting secondary school, he enrolled at the Faculty of Natural 
Sciences and Engineering at the University of Ljubljana and 
graduated in chemical technology in 1967. He immediately took 
up a job at the INIS glass factory, and moved to the IMV car fac-
tory in Novo mesto when INIS went bankrupt. In 1970 he was 
employed by Krka, where he worked in various fields, including 
five years in production, seven years in the area of investments, 
nineteen years in the area of finance, and from 2001 until his 
retirement in March 2010 as Deputy Chief Executive of Krka.

In 2008 he completed the training for supervisory and manage-
ment board members at the Slovenian Directors’ Association.

He has been a supervisory board member of two Krka, d. d., 
Novo mesto subsidiaries: Krka Farma, Zagreb (Croatia) and 
Krka Zdravilišča, Novo mesto. Beyond Krka, he has been a 
supervisory board member of commercial banks, an insurance 
company, a health institution and public companies in Slovenia 
and Croatia. He is currently a supervisory board member of TPV 
d. d., Novo mesto.

Prof. Julijana Kristl PhD

Professor Julijana Kristl PhD, born in 1953, is from Ljubljana. 
She holds a PhD in pharmaceutical science. In 1977 she 
was employed by the Faculty of Pharmacy at the University 
of Ljubljana. She continued her studies in the pharmaceutical 
industry at the University of Geneva and elsewhere. She has 
been successfully carrying out various scientific, teaching and 
managerial jobs. Her research work focuses on modern active 
substance delivery systems, nanotechnology and biomaterials. 
She is the author of several scientific and expert works, and has 
been effectively passing on the achievements of her scientific 
research work to her students in various study courses. She 
has held a range of functions. She has served as a Vice-Dean, 
the Head of the Chair of Pharmaceutical Technology, for two 
terms as the Dean of the Faculty of Pharmacy, and for two 
terms as the Vice-Rector at the University of Ljubljana in charge 
of education, enrolment and quality. 

She is currently involved in research projects, gives lectures 
and holds various functions in Slovenia and in important inter-
national institutions such as the US-based American Chemical 
Society and Controlled Release Society and Association de 
pharmacie galenique industrielle (International Society of Drug 
Delivery Sciences and Technology) from France. She is a mem-
ber of editorial boards of the Journal of Drug Delivery Science 
and Technology, Ars Pharmaceutica and Journal of Biomedical 
Nanotechnology. She is a peer reviewer for more than 30 inter-
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national scientific journals with an impact factor ranking. Due 
to her great visibility and reputation in the scientific community, 
she frequently evaluates doctoral dissertations and research 
projects at foreign universities and agencies. 

Her expertise covers the planning, development and assess-
ment of medicinal products, and she also has experience in 
obtaining marketing authorisations.

EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES

Franc Šašek
Deputy President of the Supervisory Board

Born in 1967, Franc Šašek is a graduate of organisational sci-
ence. He came to Krka in 1984. Prior to 2000 he worked as 
a technologist, the Head of the Technical and Technological 
Preparations Department, and Head of Section. Since 2001 he 
has served as a senior specialist in Engineering and Technical 
Services in the area of maintenance and project management. 
In 2004, he was actively engaged in implementing the business 
process management system (SAP) as the project group leader 
for maintenance and was later appointed process owner for 
maintenance in Krka responsible for the system’s implementa-
tion, development and optimisation. His function remained the 
same when the system was being installed in Krka’s subsidiar-
ies. Since 1999 he has also worked in the area of quality assur-
ance, as a certified quality officer, quality trainer and registered 
internal quality auditor. He is jointly responsible for the develop-
ment and maintenance of the integrated quality system. 

In 2009, he underwent training for supervisory and manage-
ment board members at the Slovenian Directors’ Association.

He was elected president of the Krka Works Council for the 
2009 to 2013 term and again for the 2014 to 2018 term and 
assumed the position of a Supervisory Board member on 21 
June 2009. 

Mateja Vrečer PhD
President of the Supervisory Board’s Human Resource Committee 

Mateja Vrečer PhD was born in 1966. She has worked for Krka 
since 1990. She started as a pharmaceutical engineering gradu-
ate. She passed the certification examination in pharmaceutical 
engineering, obtained her master's degree, and gained her doc-
torate in pharmaceutical science. She first worked in Research 
and Development, where she prepared technical documentation 
for proposed new products. After their approval, she conducted 
projects in Slovenia from their marketing authorisation to their 
launch. Since 1997, she has been engaged in quality manage-
ment, and was appointed Deputy Director of Quality Manage-
ment. Since March 2007, she has also served as the Head of 
International Quality Assurance. In September 2011 she was 
appointed Director of Quality Management.

She was an employee representative of the Krka Supervisory 
Board in the 2005–2009 term and on 21 June 2009 was re-
elected for another five-year term of office.

Tomaž Sever MSc

Tomaž Sever was born in 1967. After graduating as a mechani-
cal engineer, he acquired a master’s degree in management 
and organisational science. He has been a Krka employee 
since 1995. He is now Deputy Director of Sales and Director 
of Region Central Europe, charged with the following tasks: 
market research, proposing and developing Krka’s presence 
in individual markets, defining sales supply, proposing pric-
ing strategies for individual markets, collaborating in planning 
sales actions, designing, developing and managing distribution 
channels, and collaborating in the creation of sales networks 
abroad. Before coming to Krka, he worked for IBM Slovenia 
from 1992 to 1995 where he was initially the sales representa-
tive for information systems and later led information system 
installation projects.

He has been a member of the Krka Supervisory Board as an 
employee representative since the 2005–2009 term and on 21 
June 2009 was re-elected for another 5-year term of office.

Management Board  
The Management Board tasks are to:

•	 manage the Company and make business decisions di-
rectly and independently;

•	 adopt the Company’s development strategy;
•	 ensure appropriate risk management; and
•	 act with the reasonable care and diligence of a good and 

honest manager and protect the business secrets of the 
Company.

The Management Board is composed of five members: 

•	 President of the Management Board;  
•	 three members; and  
•	 a Worker Director who represents the employees’ interests 

regarding human resource and social issues, but is not au-
thorised to represent the Company.

The term of office of Management Board members is six 
years, with the possibility of re-appointment.

The Management Board’s operational functions and assign-
ment of duties are defined by the Management Board Rules 
of Procedure. The body’s operating approach is to co-ordinate 
opinions and make decisions by consensus. In line with the Rules 
of Organisation and the Rules of Procedure of the Management 
Board, Management Board members also have executive man-
agement tasks. Every Management Board member is respon-
sible for a certain number of organisational units, which permits 
direct co-operation between the Management Board and the 
executive directors, and at the same time a Management Board 
member directly manages certain organisational units.

The following company bodies support the Management 
Board’s work: 

•	 Board of Directors;  
•	 Sales Committee;  
•	 Development Committee; 
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•	 Quality Committee; 
•	 Investment Committee; 
•	 Human Resource Committee; 
•	 Information Technology Committee; 
•	 Economics and Finance Committee; and 
•	 Corporate Identity Committee. 

The committees bring experts together from individual sec-
tors of the Krka organisation. They prepare business policies 
and strategies for individual areas and also have some deci-
sion-making responsibilities relating to the implementation of 
annual plans.

Emoluments, reimbursements and other benefits for Man-
agement Board members are defined in work contracts drawn 
up between the Supervisory Board and individual Management 
Board members. The Supervisory Board adopts Rules Defin-
ing the Bonus Element of Management Board Remuneration, 
and also determines the remuneration for Management Board 
members. In line with the Corporate Management Code, the 
Supervisory Board adopted a Management Board Remunera-
tion Policy in 2010. The Supervisory Board amends or updates 
both documents in the light of business circumstances. The 
latest amendment was made in February 2014. 

Payments to the Management Board members are made 
in cash and are presented in financial statements under 
the Note Transactions with Related Persons, which also 
discloses the ownership of Krka shares by Management 
Board members. 

Members of the Management Board and persons related to 
them report to the Company and competent institutions about 
any acquisition or disposal of shares of the Company or asso-
ciated companies they may make. Krka makes this informa-
tion public. 

Management Board members must disclose the existence of 
any conflicts of interest to the Supervisory Board and also 
notify other Management Board members. Members of the 
Management Board do not act as members of the manage-
ment or supervisory bodies of unrelated companies during their 
term of office for Krka.

MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

Jože Colarič 
President of the Management Board and Chief Executive

Jože Colarič was born 1955 in Brežice. After completing 
secondary school in Novo mesto, he studied at the Faculty 
of Economics in Ljubljana, and graduated in 1979. He has 
worked for Krka since 1982, starting in the Finance Sector, 
where he was first Head of Foreign Currency Payments, 
and then Assistant Director. In 1989 he took charge of 
exports within the Import-Export Sector, and two years later 
became Deputy Director of Import-Export. In early 1993 
he was appointed Deputy Chief Executive for Marketing 
and Finance, and in September of the same year also 
became Director of Marketing and Sales. In 1997 he was 
appointed to the Management Board. In the following year 
the Supervisory Board appointed him Deputy President of 
the Management Board, and in 2002 acknowledged him as 
a future president of the Management Board, putting him in 
charge of proposing candidates for the new Management 
Board team. At its meeting of 12 July 2004, the Supervisory 
Board appointed him President of the Management Board 
and Chief Executive, with a 5-year term of office beginning 
on 1 January 2005. At its meeting on 21 January 2009, the 
Supervisory Board appointed him for a further 6-year term of 
office, starting on 1 January 2010.

From left to right: Danica Malnar Novak, Jože Colarič, Aleš Rotar PhD, Zvezdana Bajc and Vinko Zupančič PhD
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Aleš Rotar PhD
Member of the Management Board and Director of Research 
and Development 

Aleš Rotar was born in 1960 in Zadar, Croatia. He graduated 
in pharmacy from the Ljubljana Faculty of Natural Sciences and 
Engineering in 1984, and earned a master’s degree seven years 
later. In 1993 he gained an international MBA from IEDC, Brdo. 
He acquired a doctorate from the Faculty of Pharmacy in 2000. 
He started work for Krka in the Stability Department in 1984. In 
1991 he became Head of Pharmaceutical Technology in 1991, 
and two years later became Head of Pharmaceutical Devel-
opment within Research and Development. In 1998 he was 
appointed Deputy Director of Research and Development and 
in 1999 became the director of that sector. He was appointed 
as a member of the Management Board in 2001, and began his 
second term on 31 July 2002, before being reappointed for the 
period from 31 July 2007 to 31 December 2009. He has been 
the board-level Director of Research and Development since 
2002. At its meeting on 29 July 2009, the Supervisory Board 
re-appointed him to the Management Board for a further 6-year 
term of office, starting on 1 January 2010.

Zvezdana Bajc
Member of the Management Board and Director of Accounting 
and Controlling

Zvezdana Bajc was born 1953 in Novo mesto. After completing 
secondary school, she went on to study foreign trade at the 
Faculty of Economics in Ljubljana, and graduated in 1977. 
She started working for Krka in that year in the Economics 
Sector, before moving to Investment Services in 1979. At the 
end of 1980, she temporarily left Krka and for six years taught 
mathematics and organisational studies at the Secondary 
Technical and Health Care School in Novo mesto. In 1986 she 
returned to Krka and commenced work with the Economic 
Planning Service. Since 1999 she has been Director of 
Accounting and Controlling. She first became a member 
of the Management Board on 1 April 2005. At its meeting of 
29 July 2009, the Supervisory Board re-appointed her to the 
Management Board for a further 6-year term of office, starting 
on 1 January 2010.

Vinko Zupančič PhD 
Member of the Management Board and Director of Product 
Supply

Vinko Zupančič was born in 1971 in Novo mesto. He completed 
his secondary education in Novo mesto. He graduated from the 
Faculty of Pharmacy in 1996 and gained a master’s degree in 
pharmacy. He passed a certification examination in pharmacy 
in 1998, and earned a doctorate from the Faculty of Pharmacy 
in 2010. He joined Krka in 1997 as an intern in the warehousing 
and transport section of Product Supply. In 1998 he became 
a warehouse technologist and then a senior warehouse 
technologist. In 2000 he assumed the job of assistant to the 
head of Warehouse and Transport Services, and in 2002 
became Deputy Head of the Product Supply Logistics Centre. 

On 1 February 2004 he was appointed director of Krka’s 
representative office in Bangalore, India. He returned to Krka 
in Slovenia on 1 July 2005 and became Head of the Product 
Supply Logistics Centre. He was appointed Deputy Director of 
Product Supply on 1 December 2008, and Director of Product 
Supply on 1 January 2010. On 29 July 2009 the Supervisory 
Board appointed him as a member of the Management Board 
for a 6-year term, starting on 1 January 2010.

Danica Novak Malnar
Member of the Management Board – Worker Director and 
Head of Pharmaceutical Production  

Danica Malnar Novak was born in 1957 in Kremen, near Krško. 
In 1982 she graduated in pharmacy from the Faculty of Natural 
Sciences and Engineering in Ljubljana. She started working for 
Krka in 1982 as an intern in pharmaceutical production, and 
after that worked as a technologist. In 1986 she was appointed 
Head of Pharmaceutics in Ljutomer, and two years later on 
her return to Novo mesto Head of the Division for Operative 
Production Planning. In 1994 she was placed in charge of the 
Production Planning Division. She has been Head of Phar-
maceutical Production since 1999. She was appointed to the 
Management Board in 1998 as a workers’ director, and was 
first reappointed in 2003. She was elected as a workers’ direc-
tor for the third term in 2007 due to her positive personal traits, 
work results and the great trust and respect she has earned 
from her colleagues. She was again appointed the workers’ 
director in 2012. Her latest term in office began in early 2013 
and expires at the end of 2015. 

Governance of the Krka Group  
The Krka Group comprises the controlling company Krka and 
subsidiaries in Slovenia and beyond. Krka is generally the sole 
owner of the subsidiaries, which are organised as limited liability 
companies. 

Uniform rules on governance, organisation and operation are 
applied to all companies in the Krka Group, unless required oth-
erwise by local legislation. The controlling company defines the 
strategies and operational objectives of all individual companies 
in the Krka Group and monitors the implementation of plans. 
To ensure cohesive management and supervision across the 
Group, the Management Board of the controlling company also 
acts as the annual general meeting of all subsidiaries. Individual 
Management Board members are also members of the super-
visory boards or boards of directors of the subsidiaries, but are 
not additionally paid for their function. 

Applying the principles of functional leadership, where the 
business function in the controlling company manages the 
business function in the subsidiary company, ensures that the 
objectives are realised at the operative level. Supervision of 
the subsidiaries’ everyday operations takes place via regular 
reporting, while the ‘function covers function’ principle means 
that specialist staff members from Krka are in daily contact with  
colleagues in the subsidiaries.
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Internal auditing 
Internal auditors act according to medium-term and annual 
work plans and the International Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing (the Standards) to conduct their 
mission in the Krka Group. This has been certified by an inde-
pendent external audit. 

In compliance with the 2013 annual plan, 14 regular internal 
audits were carried out in line with the COSO ERM (Committee 
of Sponsoring Organisations – Enterprise Risk Management) 
methods. The work plans and reports on internal auditing are 
adopted and approved by the Management Board and the 
Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee.

The mentioned methods are globally recognised and serve as 
the basis for comprehensive risk management. The internal 
auditors apply the methods to assess the fulfilment of audit-
ing objectives in several categories: operations, reporting and 
compliance with the regulations for each audit field. 

Internal audits were carried out in compliance with the said 
methods in the fields of pharmaceutical development, mar-
keting, sales, quality management, transport, and information 
technology. Regular internal audits were also conducted in 
three subsidiaries and three representative offices abroad. 
In addition, consultancy work was carried out in line with the 
Standards. 

Internal controls and risk 
management relating to 
financial reporting
The Krka Group has established internal controls, i.e. guide-
lines and procedures that are implemented at every level of 
operation, to manage risks related to financial reporting. The 
internal controls’ purpose is to ensure the reliability of finan-
cial reporting, and compliance with the applicable legislation 
and other internal and external regulations. Implementation of 
standard information systems in subsidiaries and the develop-
ment of business information systems increase the efficiency of 
accounting data exchange between the subsidiaries and the 
controlling company, and hence also control over information. 

Accounting controls are based on the principles of the verac-
ity and segregation of duties, transaction controls, accuracy of 
accounting records, reconciliation of accounting balances and 
the actual balance, separation of record-keeping from payment 
transactions, professionalism of the accounting staff and inde-
pendence. Accounting controls are closely linked to information 
technology controls which, among other things, ensure restric-
tions and supervision of access to networks, data and applica-
tions, and the completeness and accuracy of data capture and 
processing. Authorised external agents also verify the compli-
ance of operations and the existence of the requisite controls 
within information systems on an annual basis.

We manage risks related to the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Krka Group by directing the accounting activities 
and their supervision in the subsidiaries and by auditing the 
annual financial statements of all subsidiaries in the Krka Group.

External auditing  
The certified auditing company Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno 
svetovanje, d. o. o., Ljubljana, audits the financial statements of 
the controlling company and the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Krka Group. In relation to the performed audit, the 
external auditor reports its findings to the Management Board, 
Supervisory Board and the Auditing Committee of the Super-
visory Board.

Transactions between the Krka Company and the auditing 
company Ernst & Young Revizija, poslovno svetovanje, d. o. o., 
Ljubljana, and transactions between companies within the 
Group and individual auditing companies are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements Transactions with Auditing 
Companies. 

WE CONTRIBUTE TO COMPREHENSIVE  
RISK MANAGEMENT.

Internal auditors were able to give an assurance that the 
audited fields had a functioning and effective internal control 
system in place to achieve the objectives in those fields. There 
was, however, room for improvements, so they made a series 
of recommendations which were categorised by individual risk 
levels, and they regularly verified their implementation.

The internal auditors also work with external auditors, certified 
information system auditors (CISA) and the Supervisory Board’s 
Audit Committee, to which they report directly.
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Corporate Governance Code 
compliance statement
The Management Board and Supervisory Board of Krka, 
tovarna zdravil, d. d., Novo mesto hereby declare that in 2013 
individual members of the Management and Supervisory 
Boards, and the Management and Supervisory Boards as bod-
ies of a listed company, acted in compliance with the principles 
of governance for listed companies and worked to ensure their 
implementation within the Company. 

Krka complied with all provisions of the Corporate Governance 
Code in force since 8 December 2009 which were drawn up 
and adopted unanimously by the Ljubljana Stock Exchange, 

the Slovenian Directors’ Association, the Managers' Asso-
ciation of Slovenia and are published on the website of the 
Ljubljana Stock Exchange. 

Krka also complied with most provisions of the code relating to 
companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange, i.e. the Code 
of Best Practice for Warsaw Stock Exchange Listed Compa-
nies. The discrepancies are explained in a separate document, 
which is published in the dissemination system of the Warsaw 
Stock Exchange. 

Novo mesto, 3 April 2014

Jože Colarič
President of the Management Board and Chief Executive

Jože Lenič MSc
President of the Supervisory Board
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Krka Group development 
strategy

Mission
Living a healthy life.

Vision
We are continually consolidating 

our position as one of the 
leading generic pharmaceutical 

companies in the world.

Values
Speed and flexibility

Partnership and trust

Creativity and efficiency

In November 2013, the Krka Management Board of the Com-
pany adopted the Krka Group’s development strategy for the 
period from 2014 to 2018, and presented it to the Supervisory 
Board. The success of implementing the strategic objectives 
is measured at three levels: Group, each product group, and 
business function. 

The Group’s performance criteria are monitored by the Man-
agement Board, while criteria at the level of product and service 
groups and business functions are monitored by the relevant 
committees. The guiding principle in managing the system of 
criteria is to increase the competitiveness of the Group as a 
whole and also of the individual companies within the Group.
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Key strategic objectives until 2018

To attain on average at least 5% annual organic growth in sales

To ensure growth (in addition to organic growth) by establishing long-term business arrangements, including joint ventures,  
and by merging with companies of interest to us in business terms or available to us 

To ensure that new products represent at least one-third of total sales 

To launch the selected product portfolio as the first generic pharmaceutical company in our target markets 

To strengthen the competitive advantages of the product portfolio 

To maintain the largest possible share of vertically integrated products 

To improve cost effective use of assets

To increase product cost efficiency 

To improve all business function innovations 

To remain independent 

Key strategies until 2018

To focus primarily on European and central Asian markets 

To establish a new sales region, Overseas Markets, with sales offices for the Middle East, Far East, Africa and the Americas to enhance  
how the sales potential of these areas is exploited

To streamline the orientation to key markets (Slovenia, Croatia, Romania, Ukraine, Russian Federation, Poland, Hungary, Czech Republic,  
Western Europe), key customers and key products 

To establish our presence in Western European markets by doing business through our own marketing-and-sales companies and  
by marketing products under our own brands 

To intensify pharmaceutical and chemical activities and increase the range of prescription products in three key therapeutic fields (medicines for the 
treatment of cardiovascular diseases, the alimentary tract and metabolism, and the central nervous system) while entering new therapeutic fields 
and expanding the range of non-prescription products in selected therapeutic fields 

To enhance the vertical integration from development through to product manufacture 

To ensure the permanent supply of incoming materials and optimise the supply by aiming for the constant reduction of purchasing prices 

To develop generic medicines and prepare market authorisation documentation before the expiry of the patent for the original medicine 

To strengthen all kinds of connections with external institutions and companies in the field of development 

To increase investments in production, development and infrastructural capacities 

To acquire local pharmaceutical companies, plan take-overs and mergers and various kinds of long-term business arrangements (joint ventures)  
in selected markets in order to comply with the primary objective of attaining market shares and entering new therapeutic fields 

To reduce the impact of financial and economic risks on the Krka Group’s operations 

To pursue a dividend-increase policy whereby up to 50% of the consolidated profit of major shareholders generated in the year  
before is allocated to dividends by considering the Group’s financial requirements for investments and mergers in each year 

To strengthen the professional and cost synergy of the Krka Group, and maximise the utilisation of competitive advantages  
in the business environments in which Krka companies operate abroad 

To enhance the internationalisation of all business functions by asserting English and Russian as the key foreign languages of communication  
throughout the Group 

To maintain our economic, social and environmental responsibilities to the surroundings in which we operate 

To operate according to principles of business excellence and to strengthen the recognition of Krka and its positive public image 

Krka Group business objectives for 2014

Sales of products and services are estimated at EUR 1,245 million 

East Europe is expected to be the largest sales region, and the Russian Federation to remain the most important individual market 

The proportion of sales in markets outside Slovenia is estimated to exceed 93% 

Prescription pharmaceuticals will remain the most important product group, and are expected to represent more than 80% of overall sales 

Profit is planned at the level attained in 2013

The number of employees is projected to grow in Slovenia as well as abroad, in total by more than 4% 

Investments of more than EUR 164 million are planned, dedicated especially to extending and modernising the production and development-and-
research facilities and infrastructure 
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Macroeconomic forecasts for 2014 in figures

Country 
Growth in  

pharmaceutical market (%)

Value of pharmaceutical 
market in EUR million  
at wholesale prices

FX rate 
(currency/EUR)

Slovenia -4 495 eurozone

Croatia -3 820 7.5

Romania 2 2,800 4.5

Russian Federation 1–3  16,000 47–49.5

Ukraine -2 3,000 13.5

Poland -3 5,100 4.0

Hungary 2 2,000 300

Czech Republic -9 1,740 27

West Europe 2 175,000–180,000 eurozone

Sources for pharmaceutical market forecasts: internal forecasts. 
Sources for FX-rates: bank reports. 

The conditions in most international markets are expected 
to remain challenging and unstable. Krka is present in more 
than 70 markets and applies the vertically integrated business 

model. In this regard, the Company expects that the imminent 
macroeconomic conditions will provide a sufficiently favour-
able baseline for Krka's sales to increase also in 2014. 

Macroeconomic forecast  
for 2014

The macroeconomic forecasts below are mainly summarised 
from the projections of external analysts. 

SLOVENIA
In 2013, Slovenia recorded a further drop in economic activities, 
but the trends are expected to reverse in the second half of 
2014. Low consumption, few investments and the current con-
ditions in Slovenian export markets bring the risk that economic 
growth might fall short of the projections, while bank rehabilita-
tion, the resulting company deleveraging, and potential reforms 
aiming to stimulate the national economy represent the baseline 
for future improvement. 

In 2014, we expect the domestic pharmaceutical market to 
decrease by 4%. Its value is estimated at approximately EUR 
495 million.

CROATIA
2013 was positively marked by Croatia’s accession to the 
European Union, but even so the prevailing economic condi-
tions remained challenging. Unemployment is still rising, and 
disposable household income is low. Both factors in combina-
tion with the deleveraging of the banking and private sectors 
and economic uncertainty negatively impact consumption and 
investments which are both crucial for economic growth. Public 
debt currently represents approximately 60% of GDP, among 
the lowest levels in the European Union, but is expected to 
increase due to the economic stagnation. No major changes 
are expected in the kuna exchange rate. 

The value of the Croatian pharmaceutical market in 2014 is esti-
mated at approximately EUR 820 million, which is 3% less than 
the year before. 

ROMANIA
The double-digit rise in exports recorded in 2013 was primarily 
due to Romanian car manufacturing and counterbalanced the 
low domestic demand and fall in investments. Despite the poor 
conditions, the 7% unemployment rate among young people 
remained stable, and is also expected to remain unchanged 
in 2014. Public debt was below 40% of GDP in 2013, and is 
forecast to remain at the same level in 2014, so in terms of pub-
lic finances Romania is expected to retain its position among 
the stable countries. Its economic growth is expected to reach 
approximately 2%, which is comparable to the 2013 figure. In 
2014 Romania will be one of the few European countries to 
record economic growth. 

The value of the Romanian pharmaceutical market is expected 
to grow in 2014 by approximately 2% and reach nearly EUR 
2.8 billion.

THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION  
In 2013, economic growth was almost half the level seen in the 
previous three years due to the moderate yet comprehensive 
slowdown of the basic economic growth factors, i.e. domestic 
consumption, investments, net exports and public consump-
tion. In 2014, the unemployment rate is projected to be less 
than 6%, which is slightly worse than the year before. Public 
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debt represents less than 5% of gross GDP, so the potential 
for further progress is substantially supported by the prices of 
fuel and energy, global economic trends and national economic 
policy adapted to the prevailing circumstances. 

In 2013, a 5% growth was recorded, which was lower than 
expected. In 2014, the Russian pharmaceutical market is fore-
cast to expand by 1 to 3% and reach the value of approximately 
EUR 16 billion.

UKRAINE
Analysts emphasise the need for structural reforms in Ukraine. 
The country will have to make a decision about its strategic 
orientation and opt either for its traditional markets or the Euro-
pean markets. The conditions remain uncertain and the already 
weak demand for steel products, which are basic Ukrainian 
export goods, has further slumped. 

The exchange rate of the hryvna is expected to remain uncer-
tain. The demand of the local population and economy for for-
eign currencies is substantial, and the government needs them 
to repay international loans, so a substantial depreciation of the 
domestic currency may be pending. 

We have considered the economic circumstances in Ukraine 
and the forecasts by independent analysts. Based on these, we 
forecast a negative growth of -2% in the Ukrainian pharmaceu-
tical market and its annual value to be just under EUR 3 billion. 

POLAND
In 2013, Poland saw surprisingly low, yet still positive, economic 
growth which is expected to improve slightly in 2014 especially 
due to the favourable foreign currency trends already seen in 
2013. The unemployment rate is projected at a relatively high 
10%. The balance of public finances is expected to decrease 
despite the fact that pension funds were transferred from the 
second pension pillar to the budget. No major changes are pro-
jected for the złoty exchange rate.

Given the expected 3% fall, the value of the Polish pharmaceu-
tical market will reach around EUR 5.1 billion.

HUNGARY
Hungary recorded low, but still positive economic growth in 
2013. In 2014, moderately favourable business conditions are 
expected as well as further slight economic growth, especially 
due to the regulated prices of fuels and energy and positive 
export trends. The employment rate is estimated at more than 
10%, employment in the private sector is expected to stagnate 
and public debt is anticipated to reach approximately 80% of 
GDP, so the circumstances will remain uncertain. The exchange 
rate is forecast to retain its value of approximately 300 forint 
per euro. 

According to our estimates for 2014, the Hungarian pharma-
ceutical market will grow by 2% and its value will amount to 
EUR 2 billion.

THE CZECH REPUBLIC 
In 2013, the 1% increase in VAT and rises in other taxes and 
levies, as well as the growing prices of fuels and energy fur-
ther aggravated the already unfavourable economic trends. 
The strengthening of financial brokerage positively contributed 
to economic growth, but the manufacturing sector stagnated. 
Employment was increasing slightly in particular due to the 
more flexible forms of employment. We expect the Czech 
krona’s exchange rate to remain relatively stable. 

The Czech pharmaceutical market is expected to contract by 
9% and its value will reach approximately EUR 1.74 billion.

WESTERN EUROPE
Several European Union countries have adopted sets of 
measures with unfavourable short-term effects that represent 
inevitable structural measures in the long term. In addition to 
these, consolidation trends in the public finances of individual 
countries as well as at the European Union level have been 
observed. As a result, the basis for economic growth in the 
future has been set up. The recovery will take some time and 
additional reforms will have to be implemented to enhance the 
modernisation and advance the innovation of European Union 
economies. This is the only way to ease the persistent growth 
of the unemployment rate that has already reached more than 
10% on average and is unevenly distributed, so it represents a 
much greater problem in certain regions than might be inferred 
from the average figure. 

We estimate that the value of the Western European pharma-
ceutical market will range between EUR 175 and 180 billion and 
achieve 2% growth.
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Risk management
The business environment is not only brimming with opportuni-
ties, but it poses risks as well. Effective risk management repre-
sents an ever more important competitive advantage. Compa-
nies that manage risks well generally achieve good results in the 
market and are regarded as safe investments. 

The Krka Group manages risks by applying the principle of 
functional leadership, meaning that a business function in the 
controlling company manages and supervises the same busi-
ness function in all subsidiaries and thus ensures uniform risk 
management. Specific types of risk are managed on the Krka 
Group level by the organisational units of the controlling com-
pany whose work is related to that particular risk, which are 
familiar with that particular risk type and employ suitably quali-
fied professionals. 

In order to enhance strategic application, all risks and pre-
ventive measures on the Krka Group level are entered in the 
Risk Register, which is updated biannually and submitted to 
the Supervisory Board Audit Committee for consideration. 
Where the risks eventuate despite the preventive measures, 
Krka applies the business continuity management system that 
includes scenarios of unexpected circumstances and potential 
incidents along with solutions for ensuring our key processes 
remain operational and uninterrupted.  

The risk management system presented above was also 
applied in 2013 and we managed risks well, with the outcome 
that no important risks eventuated.

BUSINESS RISK 

Risk area Description of risk Risk management method Exposure

Research and development

Risks related to the effectiveness of 
development processes, adequacy of 
regulatory procedures and supply of new 
products

Detailed planning of development projects 
and management of regulatory procedures

Moderate

Marketing and sales
Risks related to sales markets and adequacy 
of marketing processes

Responding to changing business conditions 
in sales markets, and adapting the sales and 
marketing activities in those markets

Moderate

Intellectual property 
protection

Risks related to intellectual property rights 
of third parties or unjustified use of Krka's 
intellectual property

Monitoring patent processes, consistent 
respect for the intellectual property of others, 
and forming provisions for potential damages

Moderate

Quality assurance

Risks related to adequacy of incoming 
materials for the production process, 
adequate quality of the production and 
development process, and the quality of 
finished products

Precise implementation of systematically 
itemised quality control procedures at all 
development and production process 
milestones

Moderate

Investment projects

Risks related to decisions on investing in 
production and other capacities, and risks 
related to procedures for implementing 
investments

Permanent control over the implementation 
of all project phases, plan monitoring, 
systematic selection of contractors

Moderate

Human resources

Risks related to the provision of key and 
professionally competent personnel, and 
risks related to running the social dialogue 
with employees

Systematic work with key personnel, 
the remuneration system, employee 
development, permanent education and 
training, measuring the organisational culture 
and climate

Moderate

Legal matters
Risks related to providing all operating 
processes with adequate legal support

Engagement of Legal Affairs in all legal issues 
of the Company, co-operation with external 
legal experts

Moderate

Environmental protection Risks of emitting hazardous substances
Permanent control of emissions and 
separation of non-compliant water and 
solvents

Moderate
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FINANCIAL RISKS

Risk area Description of risk Risk management method Exposure

Foreign exchange risk
Risk of unfavourable exchange rate 
movements

Tracking financial markets, managing open 
positions, hedging with appropriate financial 
instruments if required 

Moderate

Interest rate risk
Risk of unfavourable interest rate 
movements 

Monitoring interest rate changes, negotiations 
with credit institutions, hedging with 
appropriate financial instruments

Low

Credit risk Risk of customers defaulting on payment

Calculating credit ratings, restricting 
maximum exposure to individual customers, 
active management of receivables, hedging 
for receivables with a credit insurance 
company

Moderate

Liquidity
Risk of lacking liquid assets to settle financial 
and operating liabilities

Agreed credit lines and planned liquidity 
requirements 

Low

Risk of damage to property
Risk of damage to property due to natural 
disasters and other accidents 

Systematic threat assessments, taking 
measures in line with fire prevention studies, 
and arranging appropriate insurance

Moderate

Risk of claims for damages 
and civil actions

Risks of claims for damages by third parties 
due to loss events caused accidentally 
by the Company's activities, property or 
products placed on the market

Insurance for civil, employer and ecological 
liability, product liability insurance, and  
clinical trials liability 

Moderate

Risk of financial losses due 
to business interruption

Financial damage related to the interruption 
of production due to damage to property

Insurance of labour costs, amortisation 
and depreciation, other business costs 
and operating profit, and technical and 
organisational measures to reduce the  
impact of business interruption

Low

OPERATIONAL RISKS AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY

Risk area Description of risk Risk management method Exposure

Availability of critical 
resources to provide for the 
production and sale of key 
products

Unplanned halts and unavailability of key 
resources to provide for the production 
and sale of finished products (employees, 
buildings and equipment, materials, media 
supply, information) 

Business continuity management system, 
business impact analysis, requirement for the 
availability of critical resources and services, 
risk analysis for each area; measures to 
reduce consequences and improve process 
resilience against disturbance

Moderate

Product supply
Risks related to the timely supply of 
finished products and effective utilisation of 
production capacities

Diligent supply chain planning, and provision 
of adequate production capacities

Moderate

Quality assurance
Risk of losing the pharmaceutical 
manufacturing licence

Diligent compliance with regulatory demands, 
and implementation of all GMP measures in 
the Company's critical processes

Moderate

Technical services
Risks related to the adequate supply 
of production media to processes, and 
adequacy of technical maintenance

Back-up power supply plans, robust demand 
planning for media supply, redundant 
capacities, and planned maintenance 
processes

Moderate

Information technology
Risk of business process disruption due to  
a disruption in information resources

Independent security checks and preventive 
measures to rectify disruption; threat 
assessment and security plan

Moderate

Employees 
Risk of accident or injury in the workplace, 
risks related to an unplanned increase in 
absences 

Measures based on workplace risk 
assessments, employee interchangeability

Moderate

Protection of property
Danger of alienation and destruction of 
property

Threat assessments and security plan Moderate
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Business risks

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT RISK
Krka’s finished products must be high quality, safe and effica-
cious. The required properties must be confirmed by relevant 
research studies and data. Risks in this area include research 
and development risks as well as technological and techni-
cal risks. We mitigate them by introducing contemporary 
approaches and methods, and by exploiting in-house as well 
as acquired knowledge and experience in the research and 
development field.

We reduce these risks in the early stages of development by 
process updates, the introduction of modern technologies and 
adjustments to regulatory demands. The vertically integrated 
model of development and production allows us to control the 
whole development and production processes from raw materi-
als through to the finished products. 

Regulatory risk management, which is related to changes in the 
legislation and their interpretation, begins in the early stages of 
development of a new product and lasts throughout its life cycle. 
Krka assesses its development solutions for each product and 
the planned content of marketing authorisation documenta-
tion together with regulatory bodies by using official consulting 
mechanisms. This reduces the risk of encountering potential 
problems or even failure during marketing authorisation acquisi-
tion and extension procedures. We are also engaged in working 
groups of various industry associations to participate actively in 
drafting legislative amendments in this field.

SALES AND MARKETING RISK 
Krka sells its products in more than 70 countries around the 
world, and conducts business in a variety of geopolitical and 
macro-economic conditions, legal and competitive environ-
ments. It is therefore exposed to different sales and marketing 
risks of varying intensities. 

In individual markets, our key advantages over the competition 
are a quick response to changed business conditions and a 
prompt adjustment of sales and marketing activities. With our 
in-house services and by using independent data sources, we 
continually monitor market conditions (especially the competing 
generic producers and local pharmaceutical industry), the legal 
frameworks for marketing pharmaceuticals, systemic pricing 
arrangements, and government reimbursements for pharma-
ceuticals (in some countries partly based on statutory co-funding 
by medicine suppliers; the so-called claw-back requirement). 

We pay special attention to risks related to individual market 
environments and economies (where the greatest risk is posed 
by changes in currencies), and risks associated with each cus-
tomer, in particular the risk of their insolvency or bankruptcy, 
risks related to payment terms, and other risks related to com-
pliance with contractual provisions. We continually monitor 
market conditions, analyse them, and adjust payment terms if 
necessary, and in critical cases also arrange hedging against 
default on payments. We systematically monitor the satisfaction 
level of direct and indirect customers. We monitor sales at the 
primary level (sales to direct consumers, primarily wholesalers) 
and at the secondary level (wholesalers' sales to final consum-

ers, mainly pharmacies), and optimise inventories throughout 
the distribution chain.

We regularly evaluate the market potential of individual thera-
peutic groups and the products within them. We use a range of 
external data sources to monitor global and regional trends, and 
conduct our own market research and analyses. We constantly 
monitor the efficiency of our marketing strategies and tactics 
with performance indicators, and exert systematic control over 
marketing activities, which we plan and analyse cyclically. We 
give special attention to organising and supervising the work 
of employees in the marketing network. Our employees regu-
larly undergo training courses and we frequently examine their 
qualifications, skills and how well they are acquainted with 
working instructions. When marketing our products, we con-
sistently comply with the legislation and ethical norms related 
to advertising pharmaceuticals and in this relation also provide 
comprehensive training to all of our employees.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RISK
Respect for the intellectual property rights of third parties, 
especially patent-related rights, is a basic principle of Krka 
Group operations. We therefore start the development of a 
new product by analysing the scope of property rights related 
to the new product, and determine which solutions are pro-
tected. We define and direct our development work on the 
basis of these findings, and assess whether the solutions 
produced by our own development infringe the applicable 
rights of third parties. The current situation and any potential 
changes in the patent protection field are monitored through-
out a product’s development right up to its launch. 

If we believe that patents have been granted to third parties 
without proper grounds, which means that the subject of a pat-
ent is not actually an invention (the solution is not new or does 
not include an inventive step), and when such patents might 
hinder our work, we use the available legal remedies to cancel 
such patents. This prevents holders of such patents from fil-
ing actions against us for infringement. Should, despite these 
measures, a patent holder consider that Krka has infringed its 
rights and is to take legal action against us, we form appropriate 
provisions for potential damages.

If we think that the results of our research work are new and 
innovative, we apply for patent protection.

The same method of risk management applies to distinguishing 
marks and industrial designs, and to other relevant intellectual 
property rights.

QUALITY ASSURANCE RISK
The Krka Group monitors quality assurance risks in all its pro-
duction companies from three aspects: product quality risk, 
product safety risk, and risk to Group operations. We apply 
well-known methods to evaluate risks, and implement them in 
line with good manufacturing practice requirements (ICH Q9 
Quality Risk Management).

Product quality is defined during the development stage of a 
product and specified in the marketing authorisation docu-
mentation. We follow standard procedures and requirements 
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throughout the production process, from the purchase of 
incoming materials to product manufacture and final quality 
control, and ensure that the pharmaceutical product produc-
tion complies with relevant quality standards and a product’s 
marketing authorisation documentation.

Finished product quality assurance is a primary activity that 
involves various elements.

•	 We focus on the suitable quality of incoming materials and 
perform risk analyses to classify material- and supplier-
related risks. Based on this, we design plans and require-
ments for supplier and contractor approval.

•	 We ensure the compliance of our production and control 
equipment and production rooms by qualification and vali-
dation procedures of equipment, production rooms, pro-
duction environment, processes, cleaning, the calibration 
of instruments as well as maintenance procedures in order 
to prevent undesirable impacts on the production process 
and product quality.

•	 The monitoring and documenting of all processes and 
procedures along with the implementation of controls are 
crucial in product quality assurance. We therefore regularly 
examine, overhaul and upgrade them, and ensure that any 
necessary process changes are made correctly.

•	 We ensure compliance with standard procedures applied 
to the production and control of pharmaceuticals through 
the regular training of our employees for proper quality and 
work procedures.

•	 We ensure product compliance and conformity with re-
quirements by controlling production processes, interme-
diate products, bulk products, finished products and the 
production environment.

•	 We prevent future non-compliance in the event of non-com-
pliant products (deviations, complaints) by applying control 
mechanisms, tests and investigations of the causes, as well 
as by taking preventive and corrective measures.

In connection with quality assurance, we assess the risks 
related to retaining production licences and GMP certificates, 
and other management systems applied in Krka production 
units for every quality assurance element separately.

We regularly and systematically review the quality assurance sys-
tem in every Krka Group production unit by both external (agency 
inspections, partner audits, and audits by certified bodies) and 
internal (internal audits, audits) verification. Where required, we 
introduce improvements and thus continually upgrade the quality 
system and effectively manage quality-related risks.

INVESTMENT PROJECT RISK
Investment project risks primarily include risks related to plan-
ning investments and their value, the purchase of equipment, 
execution of works, schedules and changes to the original plan. 
We reduce these risks by implementing a system for selecting 
contractors and for regularly reviewing them. We supervise all 
execution phases by ourselves. We review the compliance of 
contractual documentation from legal and accounting view-
points. We examine whether potential changes are justified 
and what impact they would have on costs and schedules. We 
constantly monitor costs, i.e. regular costs and those incurred 
by later changes to a project.

HUMAN RESOURCE RISK
We pay special attention to the key personnel crucial for attain-
ing the set objectives of the Krka Group who are also much 
solicited by our competitors. 

We regularly plan and monitor the training and development 
of our employees and at the same time assign new responsi-
bilities to them in their work, encourage them to take on new 
duties and delegate them to new job positions. We offer them a 
range of other incentives to foster their loyalty to the Group and 
reduce the possibility of them leaving. 

Another way to manage the risk related to the lack of profes-
sionals in the market is by offering scholarships and grants to 
students. This approach allows us to attract potential employ-
ees who will assist us in the future to meet the set strategic 
objectives. Due to the lack of suitably qualified workers in the 
labour market, we systematically educate and train our employ-
ees to acquire national vocational qualification certificates.

LEGAL RISK
Legal Affairs is the department of the Krka Group in charge 
of the legal protection and legality of operations. It is involved 
in every matter that requires such involvement, constantly fol-
lows new developments in the field of legislation, prepares and 
reviews contracts, produces internal acts, engages in solving 
disputes and participates in resolving particular issues arising 
from Group operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION RISK
Certain extraordinary events, including hazardous material 
spills, fire, prolonged blackouts, certain machinery and appli-
ance breakdowns etc., might have a negative impact on the 
environment. It is important to reduce the risk of their occur-
rence as much as possible. However, if they occur appropri-
ate measures must be taken. Krka applies a procedure for 
recognising extraordinary events. It recognises and evaluates 
any potential extraordinary event and provides the related set 
of measures and actions in the case of an emergency. In this 
way, we reduce the possibility of any such event and ensure 
the implementation of effective measures by introducing new 
technologies, technical measures, preventive examination 
and maintenance of equipment, training and exercising of the 
employees for the case of an emergency. 

In 2013, we recorded no extraordinary events with a negative 
impact on the environment.

Operational risks and  
business continuity

AVAILABILITY OF CRITICAL RESOURCES  
TO ENSURE THE PRODUCTION AND  
SALES OF KEY PRODUCTS
Major emergencies and disasters that would stop the produc-
tion and sales of our products could compromise the existence 
of the Krka Group. We analyse their impact on operations to 
estimate the criticality of processes and risks to operations. 
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We apply effective measures for the protection of employees, 
property and other key resources, and for the prevention of 
emergencies and disasters. We have designed action plans 
and disaster relief measures in case of emergency as well as 
measures to reduce direct damage and operations in extraordi-
nary circumstances until normal operations are restored.

PRODUCT SUPPLY RISK
We constantly monitor the supply market, suppliers and prices 
of raw materials. We plan our inventories and keep contingency 
stocks in order to ensure uninterrupted access to the materi-
als required to manufacture finished products. We apply the 
adopted criteria to assess and select our suppliers and regularly 
audit them. In addition to the guaranteed quality, we primarily 
focus on the competitiveness and reliability of supplies when 
selecting our contractual partners, whose supplies we audit 
and control regularly. We contract at least two suppliers for 
every key raw material.

The planning of raw material inventories is based on sales fore-
casts. Inventory levels are checked regularly, and contingency 
stocks are held for strategically important raw materials. 

In the warehousing of incoming materials, bulk products and 
finished products we follow good warehousing and manufac-
turing practices. To account for major disaster scenarios, our 
raw material and finished product warehousing systems allow 
us to keep goods in several dislocated warehouses.

We follow good manufacturing practices in production proc-
esses and make sure that the production environment is suit-
able. We ensure the reliability and high quality operation of 
production equipment through regular and preventive mainte-
nance. We plan the optimum utilisation of production capacities 
and measure production efficiency. As part of this, we imple-
ment measures for continuous process improvement. We meet 
the sales demand by purchasing new equipment and mak-
ing new investments; we increase production capacities and 
ensure that key products are made at several plants in order to 
avoid potential disasters. 

We guarantee the timely supply of finished products by keeping 
every phase of product supply under control. We regularly check 
finished product availability against planned dispatch dates.

TECHNICAL SERVICE RISK
Technical service risks include risks related to the media supply, 
reliability and availability of technical systems and metrology.

In order to provide the uninterrupted supply of electric power, 
we have put in place a back-up electric power system as well 
as a diesel-powered generator for critical processes. We con-
stantly follow events in the power supply market and make par-
tial purchases. We use natural gas to provide heat energy. Our 
back-up fuel is fuel oil and we keep surplus stocks of it. 

The supply of drinking water is provided by a public utility from 
two pumping stations. 

We reduce risks related to the inadequate production and 
distribution of energy and supply of process media (electric-

ity, steam, heating water, compressed air, refrigerant and river 
water as well as pharmaceutical and process water) by ensuring 
critical equipment redundancy, robust system planning, regular 
preventive maintenance and systems testing, and by keeping 
critical spare parts in stock. Employees undergo regular train-
ing, and their skills and qualifications are regularly tested.

We regularly carry out preventive and planned maintenance of 
air-conditioning systems. Our maintenance team is well organ-
ised and trained for immediate intervention in the event of failure. 
The team uses a central control system to rapidly issue alerts 
and detect failures. It also keeps adequate inventories of spare 
parts. Non-critical equipment is dispersed to ensure that a single 
breakdown does not have a key impact on production capaci-
ties. Critical equipment is duplicated. All air-conditioning systems 
and energy utilities are duplicated for systemic information tech-
nology premises with technical protection, have security systems 
in place, and are regularly tested for any potential failures.

We reduce risks related to the reliability and availability of tech-
nical systems by continually monitoring operations, providing 
preventive checks, servicing, improvements to equipment 
and introducing new maintenance approaches. Failures and 
breakdowns are rectified according to planned procedures 
and instructions. In order to remedy breakdowns promptly and 
effectively, we have trained our own maintenance employees 
and created an inventory of spare parts, which is regularly 
checked and replenished. The employees who monitor and 
maintain technical systems undergo regular training. Their 
qualifications and skills are regularly tested.

We ensure the reliability and availability of technical systems 
with our own facilities and employees as well as contracted 
external partners. 

We carry out the regular measurement, calibration and mainte-
nance of weighing equipment.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RISK
We manage information security risks by applying the system 
for information management and security certified according 
to the ISO 27001 standard. Krka applies established methods 
to define the criticality of information resources. The meth-
ods depend on criticality assessments of the processes and 
information resources. Principal information resources include 
individual information services and applications. Their criticality 
level is summarised from all infrastructural elements on which 
the information service or application depends. Another method 
for threat detection involves independent security inspections of 
our information infrastructure.

We have identified threats and risks to all critical information 
resources. The Management Board has approved all accept-
able risks and measures for the elimination of unacceptable 
risks. To account for major disasters, we have implemented 
duplicated computer capacities in back-up system rooms (i.e. 
the Disaster Recovery Centre), and the daily storage of data 
back-up copies at an appropriately distant location.

In order to further reduce risks related to information security, 
over the past two years we have introduced advanced tools 
such as intrusion detection and intrusion prevention systems 
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(IDS/IPS), a security information and event management (SIEM) 
system, vulnerability management, etc.

We pay special attention to personal data protection. As an 
international group, we are bound to manage personal data in 
conformity with the national legislation of all countries where our 
subsidiaries and representative offices are located.

EMPLOYEE RISK
In the area of health and safety at work, we use our own 
methods to assess the probability of a specific incident and its 
consequences as well as any probable health implications for 
individual posts. Risks are assessed periodically and security 
measures are taken to keep them at acceptable levels. In addi-
tion to assessing risks in a specific workplace, we also assess 
the risks related to individual technological procedures.

We identify key and prospective employees in all processes. 
This allows us to provide for their interchangeability in key posi-
tions. The method of training and recruitment in Product Supply 
and Sales facilitates the fast exchange of employees in similar 
positions in cases where a certain business unit experiences 
a shortage of employees due to major absences or increased 
work load.

PROTECTION OF PROPERTY 
The exposure of our buildings and property is subject to regular 
and systematic assessments. Based on these assessments, 
we have drawn up a security plan which includes technical 
security measures and actions to be taken in order to prevent 
incidents and act correctly if they occur.

Financial risks

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
Due to our widespread international operations, the Krka Group 
is exposed to foreign exchange risks relating to the Russian 
rouble, Romanian leu, Polish złoty, Croatian kuna, Serbian dinar, 
Swedish krona, Czech koruna, Hungarian forint and Ukrainian 
hryvnia and US dollar. 

The Group statement of financial position presents a surplus 
of assets over liabilities in these currencies, which we consider 
to be a long currency position. The key accounting categories 
that make up the currency position are trade receivables and 
trade payables. 

Value and volatility and key exchange rates 

31. 12. 2012 31. 12. 2013
Lowest  

value
Highest 

value
Average 

value
Standard 
deviation

Coefficient  
of variation 

(%)

RUB 40.33 45.32 39.57 45.32 42.33 1.77 4.2

HRK 7.56 7.63 7.44 7.65 7.58 0.05 0.6

RON 4.44 4.47 4.30 4.55 4.42 0.05 1.1

PLN 4.07 4.15 4.07 4.35 4.20 0.05 1.3

CZK 25.15 27.43 25.22 27.73 25.98 0.60 2.3

HUF 292.30 297.04 285.85 307.25 296.89 3.87 1.3

UAH 10.64 11.20 10.38 11.47 10.83 0.25 2.3

RSD 113.39 114.14 110.33 115.17 113.08 1.42 1.3

USD 1.32 1.38 1.28 1.38 1.33 0.03 2.0

THE YEAR-END NEGATIVE FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ALMOST 
ENTIRELY RESULTED FROM THE  
11% DROP IN THE VALUE OF THE ROUBLE.

In the first quarter, the Krka Group recorded favourable move-
ments in foreign exchange so the Group generated common 
positive foreign currency gains. In the second quarter of the 
year, however, the foreign currencies of the developing markets 
recorded pronounced negative movements due to the inse-
curity caused by the easing of the Federal Reserve System’s 
expansive monetary policy. In the second quarter of 2013, the 
Polish złoty saw a 3.6% drop against the euro, while the value of 
the Russian rouble fell by a significant 7.2%. The drop in these 
currencies caused substantial net foreign exchange losses of 
the Krka Group, which was evident in the interim results.

The Polish złoty again gained strength against the euro in the 
second half of 2013. This neutralised a large portion of the FX 
differences from the first half of the year, but the Russian rouble 
continued its downward trend in the second half of the year as 
well. The pressure of global factors on the value of the rouble 
decreased. The value of the rouble was nevertheless nega-
tively affected by internal macroeconomic indicators, especially 
including the gradual slowdown in economic growth and slow 
fall in inflation. From the beginning to the end of 2013, the Rus-
sian rouble lost 11% of its value against the euro. 

Other foreign currencies contributed relatively little to the foreign 
exchange differences of the Krka Group.

We provided no hedging for foreign currency positions in 2013.

More information on the exposure to foreign exchange risk 
is provided under Financial Instruments in the Financial 
Statements.

* The coefficient of variation is the ratio between standard deviation mean value.
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Value and volatility of the 6-month EURIBOR

31. 12. 2012 31. 12. 2013
Lowest 

value
Highest 

value
Average 

value
Standard 
deviation

Coefficient 
of variation 

(%)

6-month 
EURIBOR

0.32% 0.39% 0.29% 0.39% 0.34% 0.0002 6.1

INTEREST RATE RISK
In 2013, the Krka Group settled all of its non-current borrow-
ings. Changes in reference interest rates therefore no longer 
have an impact on the Group’s overall financial expense.

CREDIT RISK
Credit control involves the credit-rating assessment of cus-
tomers to whom the controlling company and subsidiaries sell 
products totalling or exceeding EUR 100,000, and the regular 
dynamic monitoring of customer payment discipline. More 
than 400 of the Group’s customers are included in the credit 
control system.

In 2013, in line with the expansion of the sales network new 
customers of the subsidiaries from Italy, Spain and France 
were included in the credit control system. 

In comparison to its beginning, by the end of 2013 the level 
of trade receivables had risen primarily due to two factors: 
the increase in sales and uneven distribution of sales over the 
year. In the last quarter of 2013, the Krka Group recorded a 
substantial increase in sales. At the end of 2013, the amount 
of receivables due remained within the normal scope accept-
able for Krka. 

At the end of the year, insurance was arranged with a credit 
insurance company for 50% of the Group’s trade receivables. 
Bank guarantees and letters of credit were issued for a pro-
portion of our receivables. 

LIQUIDITY RISK
Thanks to stable operations without any major deviations or 
fluctuations, financing investments with our own funds, organic 
growth and substantial cash flows from regular operations, the 
liquidity risk of the Krka Group was low in 2013. At the end of 
the year, the Group recorded no borrowings.

CREDIT INSURANCE COVERAGE 
WAS ARRANGED FOR HALF OF OUR 
RECEIVABLES.

THE KRKA GROUP’S LIQUIDITY RISK  
WAS LOW IN 2013. 

In 2012, we responded to the globally increasing electronic 
payment transaction risk by implementing a series of security 
measures in the controlling company. In 2013, we also intro-
duced similar mechanisms in the subsidiaries and representa-
tive offices abroad. 

We pondered over the risks related to business banks and 
their active and passive interest rates, and reorganised our co-
operation with selected banks in 2013 accordingly. Due to the 
growing competitiveness among banking service providers, we 
also managed to cut substantially the costs related to payment 
transactions and documentary operations with banks. 

The controlling company centrally manages the Krka Group’s 
liquidity risk as well, as it does for the majority of business 
functions. It also provides for the effective management of 
the cash funds of subsidiaries and representative offices and, 
together with them, plans cash requirements and provides 
them with funds. 

For several years, Krka has recorded stable and good liquid-
ity ratios. Its suppliers regard Krka as a partner which ensures 
strict payment discipline.

According to our estimates, on average trade receivables in 
terms of the maturity structure and assessed customer risk 
remained unchanged. This was confirmed by the results of 
regular credit-rating assessments of our customers and the 
unchanged proportion of receivables hedged by first-class 
instruments. 

Write-offs of trade receivables did not have a relevant impact 
on the Group's result in 2013.

Please find more information about Krka's exposure to credit 
risk in the Notes to the Financial Statements under Financial 
Instruments.
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Liquidity ratios of the Krka Group

Liquidity  
ratios 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

5-year  
average

Current ratio 2.63 2.91 2.8 2.75 2.9 2.80

Quick ratio 1.84 1.87 1.74 1.76 1.9 1.82

Acid test ratio 0.23 0.1 0.09 0.04 0.08 0.11

Receivables 
turnover ratio

2.74 2.83 2.71 2.77 3.35 2.88

Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities
Quick ratio = (Current assets – Inventories)/Current liabilities
Acid test ratio = (Investments + Cash and cash equivalents)/Current liabilities

Each location or fire complex where the Group's assets are 
located is individually assessed, both with respect to its expo-
sure to individual risks and the possibility of reducing those 
risks with fire prevention measures, as well as with regard to 
the probable maximum loss and business interruption. On the 
grounds of the exposure assessment, international reinsurance 
companies have established that we have carried out insurance 
programmes successfully, observed the recommendations, 
and maintained high standards in terms of prevention, which all 
guarantee long-term, stable product supply and optimal finan-
cial protection. 

Krka analysed the Group's car insurance arrangements for 
2013. According to statistical trends in movements of insurance 
premiums and damages in the past few years, Krka adopted 
measures for further rationalisation, an increase in cost-effec-
tiveness and the availability of cars. It is especially important 
that older cars are exempt from Casco/hull insurance and that 
discounts are utilised based on economies of scale. The meas-
ures applied contributed substantially to the reduction of insur-
ance premiums.

The insurance programme is important for managing risks and 
liabilities in the preparation of plans and implementation of new 
investments and projects in Slovenia and beyond. Through 
insurance in this period, we ensured the management of risks 
and liabilities related to investment projects Krka-Rus 2 and 
Sinteza 1 (Krško). We also launched activities to insure the 
installation of equipment in the new Notol 2 plant.

We also arranged insurance for our employees. Within the scope 
of the personal accident insurance arranged for the employees 
in Krka and Farma GRS, we also agreed on increasing and 
standardising the insurance premiums and extending the range 
of insurances. Even though the insurance sums increased, the 
insurance premiums went down, or were reduced less than the 
insurance sums went up.

Movement of liquidity ratios of the Krka Group
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PROPERTY, LIABILITY AND BUSINESS 
INTERRUPTION INSURANCE
Krka has designed a corporate insurance programme that 
ensures the optimum financial and legal protection for property, 
business interruption and liability. When insuring its property, 
Krka considers the harmful events in the past and adjusts the 
extent and scope of insurance covers to sales growth trends 
and to its tangible assets. The increase in the Group’s financial 
power reduces the need for certain insurance covers, while the 
advances in the Group's assets and sales and the expansion of 
sales in new markets call for additional insurance requirements. 
Any change in insurance coverage and insurance cancella-
tion or an increase in own participation in damages require a 
comprehensive assessment of the effects on processes and 
costs so employees from various areas of work and services 
are engaged in the process. 
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Investor information
Shareholder return 

KRKA SHARE PRICE 

EUR 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Year high 61.00 52.70 64.48 72.69 76.17

Year low 46.05 41.40 49.00 60.94 47.78

31 December 60.00 50.00 52.90 62.95 64.04

Annual increase (%) 20 -5 -16 -2 33

In 2013, the Krka share price went up by 20%. In the same 
period the value of the blue-chip index of the Ljubljana Stock 
Exchange (SBITOP) increased by 3%.
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Krka share price in comparison with selected share indices (beginning of 2009 = 100) 

In the past five years, the performance of the Krka share price 
has outstripped the SBITOP blue-chip index, while the S&P 
Global Healthcare index has outperformed the Krka share price 
in the same period.
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DIVIDEND POLICY 
The Annual General Meeting of shareholders decides on the 
proposed dividend amount. The pay-out commences 60 days 
after the Annual General Meeting. In 2013, we allocated 33% 
of the profit generated in 2012 for dividends, and the gross 
dividend per share went up by more than 7%. 

At the end of 2013, we adopted the Krka Group Development 
Strategy for the Period 2014 to 2018 which includes the amended 
dividend policy. In the aforesaid period, we will allocate up to 50% 
of the consolidated profit of major shareholders generated in the 
year before. When determining the dividend pay-out in a particu-
lar year, Krka’s financial requirements for investments and take-
overs in that year will also be taken into consideration.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Earnings per share1 
in EUR

5.24 4.80 4.85 5.06 5.14

Gross dividend  
per share2 in EUR

1.61 1.50 1.40 1.10 1.05

Dividend pay-out 
ratio3 (%)

33.5 31 28 21 23

Dividend yield4 (%) 2.7 3.0 2.6 1.7 1.6

1	Profit of the year attributable to equity holders of the Krka Group/Average number of shares issued in the period, excluding treasury shares
2	Dividends paid for the previous period/Average number of shares issued in the period
3	Gross dividend per share/Earnings per share from the previous period
4	Gross dividend per share/Share price as at 31 December

Share trading and shareholding
Krka shares are listed on the Prime Market of the Ljubljana Stock 
Exchange, and also on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. All Krka 
shares traded on the Ljubljana and Warsaw Stock Exchanges 
are of the same class: ordinary and freely transferable. 

Each share except treasury shares represents one vote at the 
AGM. Krka shares are freely traded through brokerage firms 
and banks that are members of the Ljubljana or Warsaw Stock 
Exchanges. 

Trading in Krka shares in the period from 2008 to 2013

Trading volume on Ljubljana Stock Exchange
Trading volume on Warsaw Stock Exchange
Closing price on Ljubljana Stock Exchange
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In 2013, the average daily trading volume of Krka shares on the 
Ljubljana Stock Exchange reached EUR 0.5 million. Krka share 
thus retained its position on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange as 
the most actively traded security. Since April 2012, Krka shares 

have been listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange as well. The 
trading volume on the Warsaw Stock Exchange increased in 
the second half of the year, but on average did not reach the 
trading volume seen on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange. 

Ten largest shareholders as at 31 December 2013	

 Shareholder No. of shares Stake (%) 

  1 SLOVENSKA ODŠKODNINSKA DRUŽBA, D. D. 5,312,070 14.99

  2 KAPITALSKA DRUŽBA, D. D. 3,493,030 9.86

  3 SOCIETE GENERALE-SPLITSKA BANKA D. D. 1,244,746 3.51

  4 HYPO ALPE-ADRIA-BANK D. D. 1,031,686 2.91

  5 NEW WORLD FUND INC. 755,000 2.13

  6 KDPW 539,721 1.52

  7 LUKA KOPER, D. D. 433,970 1.23

  8 ZAVAROVALNICA TRIGLAV, D. D. 388,300 1.10

  9 AMERICAN FUNDS INSURANCE SERIES – NEW WORLD 353,049 1.00

10 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT 318,203 0.90

13,869,775 39.15

Krka had 64,136 shareholders at the end of 2013, which was 
6% less than at the end of 2012. The international investors 
increased their shareholdings the most, to more than 20% of 
all issued shares. The shareholdings of Slovenian state-owned 
funds, i.e. the Slovenska odškodninska družba (SOD) restitution 
fund and the Kapitalska družba pension fund manager with its 
PPS fund, remained unchanged. In 2013, other groups of Slo-
venian shareholders, i.e. investment funds and companies, and 
other companies and individuals, reduced their shareholdings. 

Shareholder structure (%)
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Business operations analysis  
The business operations analysis includes data for the Krka 
Group and Krka Company, whereas the comments relate pri-
marily to the Krka Group.

Sales

Sales and sales growth of the Krka Group and 
the Krka Company
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In 2013 Krka again recorded sales growth. The Krka Group sold 
EUR 1,200.8 million worth of products and services, which is 
EUR 57.5 million or 5% more than in 2012.

The average annual sales growth over the past five years has 
been 4.8%.

A detailed analysis of sales results by individual markets and 
product groups is given in the chapter Marketing and sales.

Operating expenses
The Krka Group incurred EUR 979.1 million in operating 
expenses, up EUR 19.6 million or 2% compared to 2012.

The Krka Group's operating expenses include the cost of 
sales at EUR 489.3 million, distribution expenses at EUR 323.4 
million, R&D costs at EUR 97.2 million, and administrative 
expenses at EUR 69.2 million. In the last five years, the operat-
ing expenses to sales ratio changed from 81% in 2010 to 86% 
in 2009, a figure caused in part by newly formed provisions. In 
2013 the operating expenses to sales ratio was 82%.
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Structure of the Group's operating expenses by function
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The largest operating expense item is the cost of sales, which 
rose by 5% compared to 2012. Its ratio to sales is 41%. The 
cost of sales is influenced by changes in the inventories of fin-
ished products and work in progress. Distribution expenses 
amounted to 27% of sales in 2013, up 2% over the previ-
ous year. The increase was recorded due to the expansion 
of our marketing and sales network. R&D costs amounted to 
8%, down 4% compared to 2012. Administrative expenses 
amounted to 6% of total sales and were 5% lower than in 2012. 
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Financial income and expenses

EUR thousand

Krka Group  Krka Company

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Financial income 2,114 5,418 493 7,150 885 5,316 22,431 14,046 10,637 12,160

Financial 
expenses

-28,361 -7,227 -12,079 -3,912 -10,206 -28,967 -7,690 -11,822 -3,637 -9,241

Net financial 
result

-26,247 -1,809 -11,586 3,238 -9,321 -23,651 14,741 2,224 7,000 2,919

In 2013 the Group's net financial result was worse than in 2012. 
The reason was negative exchange rate differences which 
totalled EUR 27.6 million in 2013. In 2012 the Krka Group 
recorded EUR 4.1 million of positive exchange rate differences.

Financial income includes EUR 1.5 million in interest income, 
other financial income of EUR 0.5 million and the change in the 
fair value of investments through profit or loss that amounted to 
EUR 0.1 million.

Financial expenses include EUR 0.5 million in interest expenses 
for non-current and current borrowings, and EUR 0.2 million of 
other financial expenses.

Operating profit and profit for the year

Group operating profit
Group profit for the year 

Company operating profit
Company profit for the year 
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Operating result

The Krka Group recorded EUR 227.6 million in operating 
profit, up by EUR 35.3 million or 18% compared to 2012, while 
EBITDA was EUR 321.7 million, up by EUR 39.5 million or 14%.

Profit before tax in 2013 increased by EUR 10.8 million or 6% 
and amounted to EUR 201.3 million. The Group’s effective tax 
rate was 14.2%, down 1.9 of a percentage point.

The Krka Group reported profit of EUR 172.8 million for the 
year, up by EUR 12.9 million, or 8%.
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Assets

EUR thousand

Krka Group Krka Company

2013
Share 

(%) 2012
Share 

(%)
Index

2013/12 2013
Share 

(%) 2012
Share 

(%)
Index

2013/12

Non-current 
assets

973,954 55.3 926,000 56.9 105 945,947 55.6 863,442 55.1 110

Property, plant 
and equipment

823,704 46.8 772,291 47.5 107 563,978 33.2 519,219 33.1 109

Intangible assets 115,744 6.6 118,507 7.3 98 28,303 1.7 29,908 1.9 95

Investments and 
loans

11,076 0.6 10,487 0.6 106 338,372 19.9 297,183 19.0 114

Other 23,430 1.3 24,715 1.5 95 15,294 0.8 17,132 1.1 89

Current assets 785,930 44.7 700,748 43.1 112 755,288 44.4 702,843 44.9 107

Inventories 235,820 13.4 250,751 15.4 94 190,968 11.2 190,555 12.2 100

Receivables 461,828 26.2 415,233 25.6 111 441,619 26.0 432,935 27.6 102

Other 88,282 5.1 34,764 2.1 254 122,701 7.2 79,353 5.1 155

Total assets 1,759,884 100.0 1,626,748 100.0 108 1,701,235 100.0 1,566,285 100.0 109

At the end of 2013, Krka Group assets were worth EUR 1,759.9 
million, up by EUR 133.1 million or 8% compared to the end of 
2012. Non-current assets grew primarily due to the increase in 
property, plant and equipment, which were up EUR 51.4 million, 
or 7%. 

Non-current assets totalled EUR 974.0 million, up 5% over 
the previous year. The largest item under non-current assets is 
property, plant and equipment, which is worth EUR 823.7 mil-
lion and represents 47% of the Group's total assets. Intangible 
assets represent 7% of total assets.

Current assets amounted to EUR 785.9 million, up 12%. 
The largest item under current assets is receivables, which 
amounted to EUR 461.8 million, up 11% over the previous year. 
Inventories totalled EUR 235.8 million, down 6%. Among other 
current assets, loans increased by EUR 9.1 million, and mon-
etary assets by EUR 44.3 million. They are mainly represented 
by current deposits of the controlling company with a maturity 
exceeding 30 days, which amounted to EUR 19.0 million at 
the end of 2013 and are disclosed among current borrowings, 
and for deposits with a maturity of up to 30 days, which at the 
end of 2013 amounted to EUR 27.5 million and are disclosed 
among cash and cash equivalents.
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The Group's equity increased by EUR 92.1 million compared 
to the end of 2012. The increase is attributable to Group profit 
for the year in the amount of EUR 172.8 million. Equity was 
reduced by dividend payments, totalling EUR 53.1 million, by 
the additional purchase of treasury shares in the amount of EUR 
13.7 million, and other comprehensive income for the year after 
tax in total amount of EUR 13.8 million. The largest item within 
this amount is translation reserve, worth EUR 13.5 million. 

The Krka Group had no borrowings at the end of 2013. Provi-
sions in the amount of EUR 103.1 million decreased by 2% in 
comparison with the end of 2012, especially due to the utilisa-
tion and reversal of provisions for post-employment and other 
non-current employee benefits.

Among current liabilities, trade payables rose by 25.8 million, 
with deferred tax liabilities going up EUR 4.5 million. Other cur-
rent liabilities rose by EUR 40.6 million, mainly on account of the 
increase in accrued contractual discounts on products sold to 
other customers. Liabilities also include EUR 2 million accrued 
in relation to the decision of the Appeal Court from Oslo, which 
has ruled that the subsidiary Krka Sverige should compensate 
the company Astra Zeneca for lost profit and legal expenses 
due to the alleged infringement of a patent right protecting 
medicine containing the active substance esomeprazole. 

EUR thousand

Krka Group  Krka Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

Net cash from operating activities 302,751 278,329 251,955 207,216

Net cash used in investing activities -146,065 -166,910 -146,522 -129,913

Net cash used in financing activities -93,683 -108,012 -68,822 -78,578

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 45,003 3,407 36,611 -1,275

Statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents of the Krka Group increased by 
EUR 45.0 million in 2013 because the positive cash flows from 
operations exceeded the negative cash flows from investing 
and financing activities. 

The Group reported EUR 294.7 million of operating profit before 
changes in net operating current assets. The changes in current 
assets that increased profit were changes in inventories, trade 
payables, provisions, deferred revenue and other current liabili-
ties, while changes in trade receivables had a negative effect.

The negative cash flow from investing activities was mainly 
caused by the purchase of property, plant and equipment, 
which amounted to EUR 151.7 million, the purchase of intan-
gible assets worth EUR 5.6 million and by payments in con-
nection with current investments and loans totalling EUR 8.8 
million. The negative cash flow from financing activities was 
primarily the result of the EUR 53.0 million of dividends paid, 
EUR 25.5 million of repayments of non-current borrowings, 
and EUR 13.7 million worth of repurchased treasury shares.

Equity and liabilities

EUR thousand

 Krka Group Krka Company

2013
Share 

(%) 2012
Share 

(%)
Index

2013/12 2013
Share 

(%) 2012
Share 

(%)
Index

2013/12

Equity 1,332,611 75.7 1,240,521 76.3 107 1,332,246 78.3 1,232,215 78.7 108

Non-current 
liabilities

128,833 7.3 145,362 8.9 89 98,778 5.8 113,310 7.2 87

Current 
liabilities

298,440 17.0 240,865 14.8 124 270,211 15.9 220,760 14.1 122

Total equity 
and liabilities

1,759,884 100.0 1,626,748 100.0 108 1,701,235 100.0 1,566,285 100.0 109
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Operating figures for the past five years

EUR 
thousand

 Krka Group Krka Company

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Revenues 1,200,827 1,143,301 1,075,627 1,010,021 953,038 1,116,339 1,035,280 957,653 932,366 850,119

EBIT 227,588 192,308 211,561 208,134 233,643 211,527 161,382 178,150 196,397 210,737

– EBIT 
margin

19.0% 16.8% 19.7% 20.6% 24.5% 18.9% 15.6% 18.6% 21.1% 24.8%

EBITDA 321,732 282,276 298,747 289,855 310,318 282,993 230,994 244,564 257,132 269,532

– EBITDA 
margin

26.8% 24.7% 27.8% 28.7% 32.6% 25.4% 22.3% 25.5% 27.6% 31.7%

Profit for 
the year

172,766 159,839 162,735 170,918 173,685 164,673 154,615 150,392 165,920 170,812

– Profit 
margin

14.4% 14.0% 15.1% 16.9% 18.2% 14.8% 14.9% 15.7% 17.8% 20.1%

Assets 1,759,884 1,626,748 1,534,027 1,488,204 1,341,032 1,701,235 1,566,285 1,463,448 1,446,311 1,312,939

ROA 10.2% 10.1% 10.8% 12.1% 13.3% 10.1% 10.2% 10.3% 12.0% 13.5%

Equity 1,332,611 1,240,521 1,139,754 1,053,327 920,369 1,332,246 1,232,215 1,140,485 1,058,154 932,010

ROE 13.4% 13.4% 14.8% 17.3% 20.4% 12.8% 13.0% 13.7% 16.7% 19.8%

Performance ratios

Profitability ratios
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The performance ratio values were all in line with the strategic  
guidelines.
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Marketing and sales
In 2013 sales of the Krka Group and Krka Company exceeded 
the sales recorded in 2012. The Krka Group sold EUR 1,200.8 
million worth of products and services, while sales of the Krka 
Company amounted to EUR 1,116.3 million. 

Sales by Region
Krka’s sales were the highest in Region East Europe where 
they totalled EUR 427.8 million or 35.6% of total Krka Group 
sales. Region Central Europe recorded the second highest 
sales at EUR 282.9 million or 23.6% of total Krka Group sales. 
The third highest sales were recorded by Region West Europe 
and Overseas Markets with EUR 257.7 million. Sales in Region 
South-East Europe totalled EUR 145.8 million. Sales in Slo-
venia amounted to EUR 86.6 million, which is 7.2% of total 
Krka Group sales.

Krka Group and Krka Company sales by Region 

EUR thousand

Krka Group Krka Company

2013 2012
Index 

2013/12 2013 2012
Index 

2013/12

Slovenia 86,596 91,002 95 57,476 60,086 96

South-East Europe 145,808 148,140 98 164,139 152,568 108

East Europe 427,803 354,213 121 388,885 295,612 132

Central Europe 282,940 282,400 100 279,649 287,162 97

West Europe and Overseas Markets 257,680 267,546 96 226,190 239,852 94

Total 1,200,827 1,143,301 105 1,116,339 1,035,280 108

Krka Group quarterly sales by Region 

EUR thousand

2013 2012

1st 
quarter

2nd 
quarter

3rd 
quarter

4th 
quarter

1st 
quarter

2nd 
quarter

3rd 
quarter

4th 
quarter

Slovenia 21,086 22,167 21,862 21,481 22,916 24,058 22,299 21,729

South-East Europe 34,240 33,786 30,597 47,185 35,343 38,503 29,009 45,285

East Europe 100,518 110,679 86,136 130,470 78,632 89,309 71,122 115,150

Central Europe 63,524 71,408 68,731 79,277 66,031 71,872 67,949 76,548

West Europe and Overseas Markets 75,059 64,604 53,408 64,609 70,624 68,004 58,263 70,655

Total 294,427 302,644 260,734 343,022 273,546 291,746 248,642 329,367

Slovenia

7.2% 12.1%

South-
East 

Europe

35.6%

East 
Europe

23.6%

Central 
Europe

21.5%

West  
Europe and 
Overseas 
Markets

Group Sales by Region in 2013
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Krka Group sales by Region 
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Slovenia
Sales of products and services in Krka’s domestic market in 
2013 were worth EUR 86.6 million. Prescription pharmaceuticals 
contributed nearly 83% of product sales in Slovenia, non-
prescription products a little less than 14% and animal health 
products nearly 4%. Sales of the health spa and tourist services 
of Terme Krka reached EUR 30.5 million.

Operations were strongly affected by the austerity measures 
and pressures to reduce the price of pharmaceuticals. As 
a result, the sales value did not reach that of last year, even 
though Krka maintained its 11.6% market share. 

Krka Group market position in Slovenia 

The leading pharmaceutical company with an 11.6% market share.

Our products are market leaders:

•	in the proton pump inhibitor group, with a market share of around 50%;
•	in the group of medicines acting on the renin-angiotensin system, with a market share of around 45%;
•	in the statin group, with a market share of over 40%; and 
•	in the group of antipsychotics, anti-dementia medicines and antidepressants, with a market share of over 20%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with atorvastatin, diclofenac, enalapril, carvedilol, losartan including the combination with hydrochlorothiazide, 
omeprazole, pantoprazole, perindopril including the combination with indapamide, ramipril, sertraline and simvastatin.

Prenessa (perindopril) and Prenewel (perindopril and indapamide), Sorvasta (rosuvastatin) and Atoris (atorvastatin) are among  
the best-selling pharmaceuticals.

KRKA CONTINUES TO LEAD  
THE SLOVENIAN MARKET.

We retained our position as the market leader of medicines for 
treating hypertension, hyperlipidemia, medicines for reducing 
stomach acid and medicines for diseases of the central ner-
vous system, especially dementia as we introduced memantine 
to the market under the market name Memaxa. New products 
include Tolura (telmisartan) and Meaxin (imatinib), with which we 
entered the therapeutical area of oncology. 

Special attention was paid to improving the brand recognisability 
of Amlessa (perindopril and amlodipine) and Doreta (paracetamol 
and tramadol) and the sales of our best-selling products from the 
therapeutic areas with Krka’s most represented products: Prenessa 
(perindopril) and Prenewel (perindopril and indapamide), Sorvasta 
(rosuvastatin), Atoris (atorvastatin) and Nolpaza (pantoprazole).
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Krka Group market position in Romania 

The third-ranked generic pharmaceutical company with a 2.7% market share. 

In 2013 Krka achieved market growth which exceeded the growth of the entire market. 

Our products are market leaders:

•	in the antimicrobial group (fluoroquinolones), with a market share of around 25%;
•	in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of over 20%;
•	in the statin group with an over 20% market share;
•	in the group of ACE inhibitors and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 15%; 
•	in the cerebral and peripheral vasotherapeutic group with a market share of over 10%;
•	in the proton pump inhibitor group with more than a 10% market share; and
•	in the group of analgesics and antipyretics, with a market share of over 10%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines containing the following active substances: ciprofloxacin, enalapril, ginkgo biloba, carvedilol, lansoprazole, 
losartan, mirtazapine, norfloxacin, telmisartan and tramadol. 

We are among the leading suppliers of medicines containing the following active substances: amlodipine, atorvastatin, esomeprazole, candesartan, 
clarithromycin, pantoprazole, perindopril including the combination with indapamide, pramipexole, ropinirole and rosuvastatin. 

Krka Group market position in Croatia 

The second-ranked foreign generic pharmaceutical company with a 4.7% market share. 

Our products are market leaders:

• in the antimicrobial group (fluoroquinolones), with a market share of over 30%; and
• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 25%.

We are among market leaders:

• in the anxiolytic group, with a market share of over 20%;
• in the statin group, with a market share of over 15%;
• in the proton pump inhibitor group, with an over 15% market share; and
• in the group of ACE inhibitors and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 15%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines containing the following active substances: alprazolam, dexametazone, perindopril in combination with 
indapamide, clarithromycin and lansoprazole.

We are one of the leading suppliers of medicines containing the following active substances: atorvastatin, ciprofloxacin, escitalopram, esomeprazole, 
gliclazide, clopidogrel, mirtazapine, perindopril in combination with amlodipine, rosuvastatin, simvastatin and valsartan.

South-East Europe
Sales in the markets of South-East Europe amounted to EUR 
145.8 million worth of products, a slight fall from 2012. Sales 
growth was recorded in Romania, Macedonia and Kosovo. In 
other market regions, sales were lower than the year before. 

In Romania sales were worth EUR 50.6 million. For this 
reason, Romania, the Region’s leading market has become 
one of Krka’s key markets. The majority of products sold 
were prescription pharmaceuticals. Successful launches of 

new brands and good sales of well-established brands like 
Atoris (atorvastatin), Roswera (rosuvastatin), Prenessa/Co-
Prenessa (perindopril, also in combination with indapamide), 
Tolura (telmisartan), Karbis (candesartan), Enap (enalapril) 
and Tramadol (tramadol) contributed to growth.   

Among non-prescription pharmaceuticals, Nalgesin (naproxen) 
was introduced to the Romanian market, while in relation to ani-
mal health products the focus of sales was on products for the 
treatment of companion animals.

In Croatia, one of Krka’s key markets, sales amounted to 
EUR 32.5 million, ranking Krka fourth among all producers of 
generic pharmaceuticals and second among all producers of 
animal health products. Important market shares are held by 
the groups of ACE inhibitors, anxiolytics, sartans, statins and 
proton pump inhibitors.   

Our best-selling products in 2013 were Atoris (atorvastatin), 
Helex (alprazolam), Nolpaza (pantoprazole), Emanera (esome-
prazole), Co-Perineva (perindopril and indapamide), Ciprinol 
(ciprofloxacin), Roswera (rosuvastatin) and Valsacor (valsartan). 

We extended our product range with Krka’s first oncological 
product Neopax (imatinib), which has already become the 
best-selling generic imatinib. We also started marketing new 
strengths of Atoris (atorvastatin), Roswera (rosuvastatin), Lorista 
(losartan), Valsacor (valsartan) and Doreta (paracetamol and 
tramadol). Since September, Tolura (telmisartan) and Dasselta 
(desloratadine) have also been sold on the Croatian market.

In Bosnia and Herzegovina Krka sold EUR 17.9 million worth 
of products, which is a slight fall from 2012. This was mostly 
contributed by prescription pharmaceuticals: Enap (enal-

april), Lorista (losartan), Naklofen (diclofenac), Lexaurin (bro-
mazepam), Roswera (rosuvastatin), Atoris (atorvastatin), Zyllt 
(clopidogrel), Valsacor (valsartan) and Nolpaza (pantoprazole).

Sales of non-prescription products were higher than in 2012. 
The most important products were B-complex, Septolete, Bilo-
bil (ginkgo biloba) and Nalgesin (naproxen).

At the end of 2013 Krka was the leading supplier of pharma-
ceutical products in Bosnia and Herzegovina. Consolidating our 
position as the leading supplier remains our future objective.

Also in Macedonia we remain the leading foreign generic 
medicine producer. Sales amounted to EUR 14.6 million, up 
5% compared to 2012. Despite the lowering of reference 
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prices, prescription pharmaceuticals contributed most to the 
increase in sales. In Serbia, Krka sold EUR 11.3 million worth of 
products from all three product groups. The drop in sales was 
influenced by the legislation on the procurement of medicinal 
products and elimination of certain Krka products from the 
reimbursement list. The Medicinal Products Act continues to 
give an advantage to local producers so by co-operating with 
local partners Krka products will continue to have the status 
of local products and therefore be given the possibility to be 
included on the reimbursement list. In Bulgaria, Krka sold 
EUR 10.8 million worth of pharmaceutical products, which is 
slightly less than in 2012. In Kosovo, where Krka remains one 
of the leading producers of pharmaceuticals, EUR 4.6 million 
worth of products were sold, representing an increase of over 
1% compared to 2012. In Albania, EUR 2.5 million worth of 
products were sold. This decline in sales is the result of the 
trend of reducing the prices of medicinal products in this 
country. In Montenegro, sales nearly equalled those of 2012 
and were the result of winning public procurement tenders for 
medicinal products. 

East Europe
Region East Europe was the leading region in 2013 in terms of 
sales value and growth. In most markets of this Region, where 
the Russian Federation is the largest market, double-digit sales 
growth was achieved.

The Russian Federation is one of Krka’s key markets and the 
largest individual market. Product sales there amounted to EUR 
298 million, an increase of 22% over 2012. The largest contrib-
utors to sales were again medicines for human use, especially 
Lorista (losartan), Enap (enalapril) including their combinations 
with a diuretic, Atoris (atorvastatin), Zyllt (clopidogrel), Herbion, 
Orsoten (orlistat), Perineva (perindopril) including the combina-
tions with a diuretic, Pikovit, Nolpaza (pantoprazole) and Nolicin 
(norfloxacin). The biggest sales growth was recorded by Lorista 
(losartan). The sales of Zyllt (clopidogrel) and Atoris (atorvas-
tatin) were higher. In June, Krka launched its first oncological 
product Neopax (imatinib). 

According to analysts, Krka's sales growth outperformed the 
average pharmaceutical market growth in the Russian Federa-
tion in 2013. To secure product sales in this market, it is vital 
that Krka is considered a local producer. Krka has maintained 
this status via the Krka-Rus production and distribution centre. 
The extension Krka-Rus 2 went according to plans.

ACCORDING TO ANALYSTS, KRKA'S SALES 
GROWTH IN 2013 EXCEEDED THE AVERAGE 
GROWTH OF THE PHARMACEUTICAL 
MARKET IN THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION.

In Ukraine, 2013 was a dynamic year in the pharmaceutical 
market as growth in the first four months was followed by stag-
nation and the economic situation then turned unfavourable. 
The 10% annual market growth was exceeded due to increased 
marketing and commercial activities, consolidating our position 
among the leading foreign suppliers of generic medicines. Total 
sales reached EUR 65.2 million, an almost 11% increase com-
pared to 2012, making Ukraine one of Krka’s key markets.

A great step forward in  
Region East Europe

Krka-Rus 2, phase 1,  
was completed
In Russia, we hold the position of a local 
producer of pharmaceutical products. We 
will consolidate this position by building a 
new plant and extending the logistic centre.
The first phase of Krka Rus 2 investment has 
been successfully completed. We started 
using the new logistic centre with a high-
bay warehouse and began packing the first 
finished products in the production facility.

Sales revenues in the Russian Federation 
were 

up 22%.

21% 
The biggest individual market in  
this region is the Russian Federation.

Krka Group exports to  
Eastern European markets went up 
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Krka Group market position in the Russian Federation 

The fourth-ranked mainly foreign generic pharmaceutical company with a 1.7% market share.

In 2013 Krka’s sales growth was above the average growth of the pharmaceutical market. 

Our products are market leaders:

• in the group of other non-mineral multivitamins, with a market share of around 40%.

Our products are among the market leaders:

• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 30%;
• in the platelet aggregation inhibitor group (ADP receptor antagonists), with a market share of over 20%;
• in the statin group, with a market share of around 20%;
• in the group of ACE inhibitors and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 20%;
• in the weight care product group with a market share of over 15%; and
• in the macrolide and pyranoside antibiotic group with a market share of around 10%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with the active substances dexamethasone, enalapril including combinations with hydrochlorothiazide, 
naproxen, norfloxacin, pantoprazole, ramipril and simvastatin.

We are one of the leading suppliers of medicines with the active substances atorvastatin, bisoprolol, ginkgo biloba, candesartan, clarithromycin, 
clopidogrel, losartan including the combination with hydrochlorothiazide, nifedipine, olanzapine, omeprazole, orlistat, pancreatin, perindopril including 
the combination with indapamide, risperidone, and valsartan. 

Krka Group market position in Ukraine 

The fourth-ranked foreign generic pharmaceutical company with a 2.0% market share.

In 2013 Krka’s sales growth exceeded the average growth of the pharmaceutical market.

Our products are market leaders:

• in the statin group with an over 35% market share;
• in the group of anti-dementia medicines, with a market share of about 30%; and
• in the ACE inhibitors group and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of over 15%.

Our products are among the market leaders:

• in the group of injectable corticosteroids, with a market share of more than 30%;
• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of around 20%; and
• in the macrolide and pyranoside antibiotic group, with a market share of over 10%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with the active substances atorvastatin, ciprofloxacin, dexamethasone, enalapril in combination with 
hydrochlorothiazide, ginkgo biloba, carvedilol, clarithromycin and simvastatin.

We are one of the leading suppliers of medicines with the active substances betamethasone, enalapril, losartan including the combination with 
hydrochlorothiazide, pantoprazole, ramipril and rosuvastatin.

Our best-selling products in 2013 were Enap (enalapril), Atoris 
(atorvastatin) and Coryol (carvedilol), while sales of Roxera 
(rosuvastatin) were the fastest-growing. Sales of non-prescrip-
tion pharmaceuticals were up 32% with Herbion, Bilobil and 
Septolete being best-sellers.

In Kazakhstan, the sales growth trend continued, strength-
ening Krka’s position in this largest market in Central Asia. 
Krka sold EUR 17.2 million worth of products, an increase of 
nearly 31% over 2012. Our most important products remain 
Enap (enalapril), Herbion, Duovit, Lorista (losartan) and Atoris 
(atorvastatin). We successfully launched Emanera (esomepra-
zole), Monkasta (montelukast), Nalgesin (naproxen), Amlessa 
(perindopril and amlodipine), Niperten (bisoprolol) and Naklofen 
(diclofenac).

Sales in Uzbekistan amounted to EUR 14 million, an increase 
of 21% over 2012. The largest contributions to overall sales 
came from Pikovit, Enap (enalapril), Septolete and Lorista 
(losartan). We launched the following products: Niperten (biso-
prolol), which is produced in Krka-Rus, and Vizarsin (sildenafil), 
Meglimid (glimepiride), Herbion ivy syrup, Duovit for men and 
Duovit for women. Securing high market growth and on-time 
payments remains a challenge. 

In Belarus, total sales amounted to EUR 8.1 million, represent-
ing a 31% increase over 2012, which means that the total mar-
ket growth was outperformed. Krka’s most important products 
on the Belarus market were Lorista (losartan), Septolete and 
Enap (enalapril). A special characteristic of this market remains 
the diversification of the distribution of medicinal products and 
the high protection of local producers. Despite increased pres-
sure to reduce prices at the beginning of the year and a devalu-
ation of the local currency, Krka exceeded 8% sales growth at 
the end of the year in Moldova and, with EUR 5.3 million and a 
nearly 5% market share, it remained the third-ranked producer. 
Despite considerably worse economic conditions in Mongo-
lia in the second half of the year, the annual sales plan was 
exceeded. Sales amounted to EUR 5.1 million, reaching 30% 
sales growth. In this market, where Krka is the leading foreign 
pharmaceutical producer, our employee network was extended 
from the capital city to other cities. In Kyrgyzstan, sales were 
up 61% with EUR 3.2 million of products sold. In Azerbaijan, 
sales rose 15% due to increased marketing activities, reaching 
EUR 2.97 million. In the 48% sales growth in Turkmenistan the 
greatest contribution was made by non-prescription pharma-
ceuticals enjoying 84% sales growth. With 28% sales growth, 
our market share in Georgia rose to 2.8%. Sales growth in 
Armenia reached 5%. In the stagnating Tajikistan market, Krka 
sales were up 26% compared to 2012.
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Krka Group market position in Poland 

The fifth-ranked generic pharmaceutical company with a 2.5% market share.

Krka outperformed the entire market with respect to sales growth in 2013.

Our products are market leaders:

• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and combinations with diuretics with a market share of around 30%;
• in the statin group with a market share of over 20%; and
• in the SSRI antidepressant group with a market share of around 10%.

Our products are among the market leaders:

• in the group of intestinal anti-inflammatory products, with a market share of over 20%;
• in the oral fluoroquinolone antimicrobial group, with a market share of around 20%;
• in the group of ACE inhibitors in their combination with diuretics, with a market share of over 15%; and
• in the proton pump inhibitor group with a market share of around 15%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with the active substances atorvastatin, esomeprazole, candesartan, lansoprazole, losartan and valsartan, 
including the combination with hydrochlorothiazide, paracetamol in combination with tramadol, rosuvastatin and sulfasalazine. 

We are one of the leading suppliers of medicines with the active substances alprazolam, cetylpyridinium, escitalopram, ginkgo biloba, gliclazide, 
clarithromycin, pantoprazole, perindopril, ropinirol, sertraline and telmisartan.

Krka Group market position in the Czech Republic

The third-ranked foreign generic pharmaceutical company with a 3.1% market share.

Our products are among the market leaders:

• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of over 30%.

We are among the market leaders:

• in the anxiolytic group, with a market share of over 40%;
• in the proton pump inhibitor group, with a market share of over 20%;
• in the macrolide and pyranoside antibiotic group, with more than a 15% market share;
• in the group of ACE inhibitors and their combinations with diuretics with a market share of over 15%; and
• in the statin group, with a market share of over 15%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with the active substances esomeprazole, lansoprazole, pantoprazole and valsartan including the combination 
with hydrochlorothiazide.

We are among the leading suppliers of medicines with atorvastatin, escitalopram, gliclazide, clarithromycin, quetiapine, levocetirizine, losartan including 
the combination with hydrochlorothiazide, perindopril including the combination with indapamide, ramipril, sertraline and tamsulosin.

Central Europe
In Region Central Europe, which includes three of our key 
markets – Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary – Krka 
sold EUR 282.9 million worth of products, which is com-
parable to 2012. Similarly to previous years, the dominant 
share of sales came from prescription pharmaceuticals, 
followed by non-prescription products and animal health 
products.

In Poland, which contributed 43% to the overall sales of the 
Region, sales in 2013 reached EUR 121.5 million, an increase of 
9% compared to 2012. Prescription pharmaceuticals included 
on the reimbursement list represent the majority of our prod-
ucts offered in Poland, followed by non-prescription products 

at around 5% and animal health products at about 2%. Newly 
introduced pharmaceuticals made an important contribution to 
the overall sales growth.

The main contributors to sales were prescription pharmaceu-
ticals, especially Atoris (atorvastatin), Roswera (rosuvastatin), 
Valsacor (valsartan), Lorista (losartan), Nolpaza (pantoprazole), 
Prenessa (perindopril), Sulfasalazin and Zalasta (olanzapine). 
Sales growth was recorded by Karbis (candesartan), Doreta 
(paracetamol and tramadol), Tolura (telmisartan), Emanera 
(esomeprazole), Rolpryna (ropinirol) and Amlessa (perindopril 
and amlodipine), thus making an important contribution to the 
overall sales. The sales value of non-prescription products was 
up 33% compared to 2012 with Septolete and Bilobil remaining 
the leading market brands. 

In the Czech Republic, the second largest market in the 
Region, changes in legislation negatively influenced the prices 
of medicinal products. At the end of the year, the Czech koruna 
was devaluated, putting even more pressure on the market. In 
2013 Krka sold a total of EUR 63 million worth of products, a 
6% decrease compared to 2012. 

The biggest contributors to sales were the following prescrip-
tion pharmaceuticals: Atoris (atorvastatin), Lorista (losartan), 
Prenessa (perindopril), Lexaurin (bromazepam), Nolpaza (pan-

toprazole), Lanzul (lansoprazole), Amprilan (ramipril), including 
combinations with a diuretic and Valsacor (valsartan). Non-
prescription products achieved 39% growth, with Nalgesin S 
(naproxen) and Septolete remaining best-sellers.

Further changes in legislation may be expected, which will lead 
to tougher competition resulting in price reductions. However, 
increasing Krka’s market share and maintaining its position as 
the third-ranked foreign generic pharmaceutical company in the 
Czech market remains our objective.
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In Hungary, the third largest market in the Region, price reduc-
tions continued in 2013. Total sales amounted to EUR 42.7 mil-
lion, a 12% decrease over 2012.

The largest proportion of sales was contributed by prescription 
pharmaceuticals with Prenessa (perindopril), Atoris (atorvas-
tatin), Roxera (rosuvastatin), Nolpaza (pantoprazole), Laves-
tra (losartan), Emozul (esomeprazole) and Tenox (amlodipine) 
as best-sellers. Roxera, which was launched two years ago, 

Krka Group market position in Hungary

The second-ranked mainly foreign generic pharmaceutical company with a 2.2% market share.

Our products are among market leaders:

• in the proton inhibitor group, with around a 25% market share;
• in the group of angiotensin II receptor antagonists and their combinations with diuretics, with a market share of over 20%; and
• in the oral fluoroquinolone antimicrobial group, with a market share of over 15%.

Our products are among the market leaders:

• in the group of ACE inhibitors in their combination with diuretics, with a market share of over 20%;
• in the statin group with an over 20% market share;
• in the macrolide and pyranoside antibiotic group with a 20% market share;
• in the platelet aggregation inhibitor group with around a 20% market share; and
• in the calcium-channel blockers group with a market share of around 15%.

We are the leading supplier of medicines with the active substances atorvastatin, amlodipine, indapamide, clarithromycin, clopidogrel and losartan 
including the combination with hydrochlorothiazide.

We are among the leading suppliers of medicines with the active substances esomeprazole, gliclazide, irbesartan in combination with 
hydrochlorothiazide, quetiapine, lansoprazole, pantoprazole, perindopril including the combinations with amlodipine and indapamide, rabeprazole, 
rosuvastatin and valsartan including the combination with hydrochlorothiazide.

became the third best-selling product. The sales growth of non-
prescription pharmaceuticals stood at 52% owing to the sales 
of Bilobil, while sales of animal health products were 14% lower 
than in 2012.

We expect the unstable economic situation to continue and 
the dropping prices to level out. Our core objectives remain 
increasing Krka’s market share and keeping the position of the 
second-ranked foreign generic pharmaceutical company.

In Slovakia sales in 2013 were up 3% compared to 2012. 
Among prescription pharmaceuticals the following products 
made the largest contributions to sales: Prenessa (perindopril) 
including combinations with a diuretic, Atoris (atorvastatin), 
Valsacor (valsartan) including combinations with a diuretic, and 
Nolpaza (pantoprazole). Amlessa (perindopril + amlodipine) was 
successfully launched and Doreta (paracetamol + tramadol) 
achieved high sales growth. Sales of non-prescription pharma-
ceuticals grew by 5% with Septolete and Nalgesin-S (naproxen) 
remaining the best-selling products. 

In Lithuania, sales were down 6% compared to 2012, espe-
cially due to the poor development dynamics of the entire 
pharmaceutical market in this country and pressures to lower 
prices. The most important prescription products in terms of 
sales were: Valsacor (valsartan), Prenessa (perindopril) and 
Tolura (telmisartan), all products including combinations with 
a diuretic. Among non-prescription products whose overall 
sales increased by 13% are Daleron Cold 3 and Nalgesin-S 
(naproxen). Sales of animal health products grew by 9% with 

Enroxil (enrofloxacin) and Fypryst (fipronil) being the leaders 
in sales terms. Sales in Latvia exceeded the level of sales in 
2012 by 12%. The following products were the key to achiev-
ing this result: Prenessa (perindopril) in combination with 
a diuretic, Atoris (atorvastatin) and Sorvasta (rosuvastatin).  

SALES GROWTH IN REGION CENTRAL 
EUROPE WAS THE FASTEST IN LATVIA 
(BY 12%) AND IN POLAND, THE LARGEST 
MARKET IN THE REGION (BY 9%).

Non-prescription products recorded 22% growth with Daleron 
Cold 3 and Septolete contributing the biggest shares. In 2013 
Estonia recorded 1% sales growth. The leading prescription 
pharmaceuticals in terms of sales were Enap (enalapril), Valsacor 
(valsartan) including combinations with a diuretic and Atoris (ator-
vastatin). Sales of non-prescription products with Septolete as 
the leading product in sales terms exceeded the 2012 sales level 
by 18%. 2013 was also marked by price pressures in Estonia.  
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Krka Group market position in Western Europe

In Western Europe, Krka remains the leading generic producer of esomeprazole, clopidogrel, perindopril, galantamine, gliclazide, ropinirol and 
pramipexole; the last four active substances are available in the form of tablets or capsules with prolonged release.

Krka is among the leading suppliers of generic medicines with the active substances pantoprazole, candesartan, perindopril, olanzapine, memantine, 
venlafaxine and donepezil. 

Generic pharmaceuticals for human use are marketed under Krka’s own brand in Scandinavia, Germany, Austria, Portugal, Ireland and Spain, Italy 
and France.  

KRKA IS THE LEADING PRODUCER OF  
THE GENERIC ESOMEPRAZOLE, 
CLOPIDOGREL, PERINDOPRIL, 
GALANTAMINE, GLICLAZIDE, ROPINIROL  
AND PRAMIPEXOLE IN WESTERN EUROPE.

West Europe and Overseas 
Markets
Product sales in Region West Europe and Overseas Markets 
amounted to EUR 257.7 million, a 4% decrease compared 
to 2012. This fall was the result of lower sales of prescription 
pharmaceuticals via third partners. On the other hand, the sales 
value through subsidiaries increased to 41%. A similar increase 
is also planned for the future as we would like the sales value 
through subsidiaries in 2014 to exceed the sales value of prod-
ucts under our partner brands.

leading products in the German market were Candecor (can-
desartan), Candecor comb (candesartan with combinations),  
Oprymea SR (pramipexole in the form of prolonged release tab-
lets), Pantoprazole TAD, Esomeprazole TAD and Galnora SR 
(galantamine in the form of prolonged release tablets). 

Prescription pharmaceuticals remain market leaders with 
generic esomeprazole, clopidogrel and pantoprazole. 
Through associated companies in particular, Krka success-
fully launched several generic medicines after product patents 
had expired including memantine, sildenafil and telmisartan. 
Sales of animal health products increased by 8% with further 
growth expected in the future, especially on account of sales 
of products for food-producing and companion animals under 
Krka’s own brand via subsidiaries in Germany, the Benelux 
countries and the UK. Total sales of non-prescription products 
rose by 20% compared to 2012.

Germany remains Krka’s most important Western European 
market with EUR 53.2 million worth of products sold. Over three-
quarters of total sales were contributed via the TAD Pharma 
subsidiary. Growth in this part was achieved especially by the 
successful sale of products launched in the last quarter. Krka’s 

ALL EIGHT SUBSIDIARIES OF REGION  
WEST EUROPE EXCEEDED THE SALES 
ACHIEVED IN 2012.

In France, the sales growth of products under our own brand 
name did not completely make up for the drop in sales via 
partner companies so the total sales value of EUR 34.8 million 
in 2013 was 9% lower. Our best-selling products were medi-
cines with generic clopidogrel, esomeprazole, perindopril 
with combinations and gliclazide in the pharmaceutical form 
with prolonged release. In Scandinavian countries, at EUR 
26.3 million sales decreased from 2012 as a result of a fall 
in sales via partner companies. The subsidiary Krka Sverige 
surpassed the 2012 sales figure. Krka was most successful 
in Sweden and Finland, especially due to the sale of generic 
medicines with venlafaxine and memantine. Despite a 17% 
drop in sales via partner companies in Spain, we nearly dou-
bled our sales from 2012 due to the considerable rise in sales 
via the Krka Farmaceutica subsidiary. Due to a fall in the prices 
of generic medicines with lansoprazole and perindopril and its 
combinations, sales in the UK were considerably lower than 
in 2012. In Ireland, sales via the Krka Pharma Dublin subsidi-
ary nearly tripled. In Italy, with 8% growth, which is the result 
of the successful operations of Krka Farmaceutici subsidi-
ary, sales in 2013 exceeded EUR 18 million. In the Benelux 
countries, we sold a little less than EUR 17 million worth of 
products, followed by Portugal with EUR 16.5 million worth of 
sales and other European countries, including Greece, Swit-
zerland and Cyprus that recorded sales of EUR 13.1 million.

Sales in overseas markets were up 19% compared to 2012 and 
at nearly EUR 21 million were the highest in the Middle East. 
As we are planning to achieve sales growth in selected over-
seas markets, especially in Iran, South Africa, Iraq, Malaysia and 
Ghana, these markets are organised under a new sales region 

Overseas Markets. In this region, the majority of sales will be 
contributed by prescription pharmaceuticals like in 2013, espe-
cially those marketed under Krka’s own brand and via the TAD 
Pharma subsidiary. 
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Krka Group and Krka Company sales by product and service group 

EUR thousand

Krka Group Krka Company

2013 2012
Index 

2013/12 2013 2012
Index 

2013/12

Human health products 1,126,161 1,067,573 105 1,070,561 990,645 108

–	Prescription 
pharmaceuticals

980,903 944,578 104 943,981 889,595 106

–	Non-prescription products 145,258 122,995 118 126,580 101,050 125

Animal health products 42,592 42,752 100 42,824 42,574 101

Health resort and tourist 
services

30,466 31,864 96    

Other 1,608 1,112 145 2,954 2,061 143

Total 1,200,827 1,143,301 105 1,116,339 1,035,280 108

Prescription pharmaceuticals
Non-prescription products
Animal health products
Health resort and tourist services

81.8%

12.1% 3.6%
2.5%

Krka Group sales by product group in 2013

PRESCRIPTION PHARMACEUTICALS WERE 
THE LARGEST CONTRIBUTOR TO THE  
KRKA GROUP’S OVERALL SALES GROWTH. 

Product and service groups*
The development, production and sales of prescription phar-
maceuticals lie at the core of Krka’s operations. In 2013, 
sales of prescription pharmaceuticals accounted for 81.8% of 
the Krka Group’s overall sales, followed by non-prescription 
products with 12.1%, animal health products with 3.6%, and 
health resort and tourist services with 2.5%. Krka Group sales 
increased in 2013 by 5% over 2012. The highest growth rate 
of 18% was achieved by non-prescription products, while pre-
scription pharmaceuticals were the largest contributor to the 
Krka Group’s overall absolute sales growth.

Krka Group quarterly sales by product and service group

EUR thousand

2013 2012

1st 
quarter

2nd 
quarter

3rd 
quarter

4th 
quarter

1st 
quarter

2nd 
quarter

3rd 
quarter

4th 
quarter

Human health products 276,760 283,614 241,262 324,525 254,618 271,472 230,108 311,375

–	Prescription pharmaceuticals 242,811 252,883 216,014 269,195 230,616 243,065 203,422 267,475

–	Non-prescription products 33,949 30,731 25,248 55,330 24,002 28,407 26,686 43,900

Animal health products 10,937 11,091 9,708 10,856 11,042 11,694 9,431 10,585

Health resort and tourist services 6,546 7,701 8,869 7,350 7,647 8,305 8,763 7,149

Other 184 238 895 291 239 275 340 258

Total 294,427 302,644 260,734 343,022 273,546 291,746 248,642 329,367

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.

Krka Group sales by product and service group

Non-prescription products

Animal health products

Health resort and tourist services

Prescription pharmaceuticals
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The leader in key therapeutic 
groups
In Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe, we are the leading supplier 
of prescription pharmaceuticals in important 
therapeutic groups such as statins, sartans 
and proton pump inhibitors. We are also the 
leading generic supplier of ACE inhibitors, 
antipsychotics and antidepressants, as well 
as pharmaceuticals for the treatment of 
Alzheimer's disease and Parkinson's disease. 

up 41%.

Marketing and sales network 
strengthened and several 
products launched
Our products are marketed under our own 
trademarks. Our own sales and marketing 
network encompasses more than 30 markets. 
By strengthening this network and with several 
new cutting-edge products we increased sales 
in Western Europe considerably.

We launched Krka's first polypill which 
combines two active ingredients for  
the treatment of hyperlipidaemia and  
high blood pressure.

Sales in Western Europe via companies in 
the Krka Group were
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New products 
For several years, sales of new products, which are products 
we have launched in the last five years, have represented 
over 45% of total sales. In 2013 this share was 45.8%. The 
most significant new products were Emanera* (esomeprazole), 
Roswera* (rosuvastatin) and Karbis* (candesartan). They were 
launched in 2010 and ranked among the 15 leading products 
in 2013.

Roswera* and Karbis* were in addition to Marixino* (meman-
tine), which was launched in 2012, among the five leading prod-
ucts in terms of absolute sales growth in 2013.

In 2013 we launched several new products containing new 
generic substances, added new pharmaceutical forms and 
combinations, dosage strengths and pack sizes, and extended 
our marketing activities to new markets.

Sales of leading products in 2013

EUR million
0 20 40 60 80 100

Septolete

Bilobil

Pikovit

Fromilid (clarithromycin)

Herbion

Karbis* (candesartan)

Roswera* (rosuvastatin)

Valsacor (valsartan)

Emanera* (esomeprazole)

Zyllt* (clopidogrel)

Nolpaza*/Nolpaza control (pantoprazole)

Prenessa* (perindopril)

Enap (enalapril)

Lorista* (losartan)

Atoris (atorvastatin)

New products in 2013

Prescription pharmaceuticals

For the treatment of cardiovascular diseases Atordapin/Atorcombo/Amaloris (atorvastatin and amlodipine)
Elernap/Lenap/Elyrno/Enap L Combi (enalapril and lercanidipine)
Tolucombi/Telmista H (telmisartan and hydrochlorothiazide)

For the treatment of diseases of the central nervous system Elicea/Ecytara/Anxila (escitalopram) orodispersible tablets
Oprymea (pramipexole) prolonged release tablets

Oncology medicines Meaxin/Neopax/Meapax/Itivas (imatinib)
Lortanda/Likarda (letrozole)
Escepran/Etadron (exemestane)
Tolnexa (docetaxel)
Ecansya (capecitabine)

Non-prescription products

For coughs and colds Herbion Iceland moss/Herbisland/Herbimos, syrup

Products with an effect on nasal mucosa Septoaqua

Animal health products

Antimicrobial pharmaceuticals for food-producing animals Flimabend/Flimabo (flubendazole)

Antimicrobial pharmaceuticals for companion animals Fypryst (fipronil), cutaneous spray

Antimicrobial pharmaceuticals for companion animals Marfloxin/Quiflox (marbofloxacin), flavoured tablets 

Biocide Ecocid Advanced (peroxyacetic acid), powder

**	The share of new products includes products launched in individual markets in 
the past five years.

Share of new products** in Krka Group sales

2009

48.2% 46.8%

2010

45.6%

2011

48.5%

2012

45.8%

2013

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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Sales of prescription products in the ten largest markets

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Index 2013/12
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ATORIS, LORISTA* AND ENAP ARE 
KRKA'S BEST-SELLING PRESCRIPTION 
PHARMACEUTICALS.

Prescription pharmaceuticals
In 2013 the Krka Group sold EUR 980.9 million worth of pre-
scription pharmaceuticals, an increase of 4% compared to 2012.

In Slovenia and in Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, 
Krka markets its prescription pharmaceuticals under its own 
brand names and has one of the strongest marketing and 
sales networks among pharmaceutical companies. With grow-
ing sales we also expanded and strengthened our network in 
2013, especially in the Russian Federation and other Eastern 
European markets. We also market pharmaceuticals under our 
own brand names in most Western European markets. Our 
marketing and sales network in these markets was built during 
the last few years and in 2013 we strengthened it.

Among the ten largest individual markets, sales of prescription 
pharmaceuticals in absolute terms increased the most in the 
Russian Federation, Poland and Romania. Among other mar-
kets, sales rose the most in Spain, the Arabian Peninsula, Iran 
and Kazakhstan.

With respect to sales, medicines for the treatment of cardiovas-
cular diseases remained the key therapeutic area of prescrip-
tion pharmaceuticals in 2013, followed by medicines for the 
alimentary tract and metabolism, and medicines for diseases of 
the central nervous system. 

Medicines for the cardiovascular system
Medicines for the alimentary tract and metabolism
Medicines for the central nervous system
General anti-infectives
Medicines for the blood and blood-forming organs
Medicines for the genito-urinary system and sex hormones
Other

16.6%

2.1% 5.1%

48.7%

15.4%

6.9%
5.2%

Sales of prescription pharmaceuticals 
by therapeutic class 

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.

Atoris (atorvastatin) remained the leading prescription pharma-
ceutical in 2013 in terms of sales, followed by Lorista* (losartan), 
Enap (enalapril) and Prenessa* (perindopril). Nolpaza* (pantopra-
zole), Zyllt* (clopidogrel), Emanera* (esomeprazole), Valsacor (val-
sartan), Roswera* (rosuvastatin) and Karbis* (candesartan) were 
also among the ten best-selling prescription pharmaceuticals.



2013 Annual Report   |  Introduction  >> Business Report  >> Sustainable Development  >> Financial Report

60

WE CONSOLIDATED OUR LEADING POSITION 
AMONG PRODUCERS OF STATINS IN  
THE MARKETS OF SLOVENIA, CENTRAL,  
EASTERN AND SOUTH-EASTERN EUROPE.

KRKA LAUNCHED ATORDAPIN*,  
THE FIRST KRKA POLYPILL WHICH 
COMBINES MEDICINE FOR TREATING 
HYPERLIPIDAEMIA AND MEDICINE  
USED TO TREAT HIGH BLOOD PRESSURE.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES
Statins
In the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern 
Europe Krka has for several years been the leading producer of 
statins, the key medicines for the treatment of hyperlipidaemia. 
Despite the drop in market value, we increased our sales by 
nearly 10% and thereby also our market share. 

Sales volume growth rose even further and over 2 million 
patients were being treated with Krka’s statins every day in 
2013. We are the leading producer of statins in eight markets 
including large markets like Poland and Ukraine. In the Russian 
Federation and Romania we are the leading generic producer. 
These markets recorded the highest increase in sales of Krka’s 
statins. Sales also jumped in France, Italy and other Western 
European markets. In 2013 Spain was one of the leading mar-
kets in terms of the absolute sales growth of Krka’s statins. 

Atoris (atorvastatin) remains our best-selling statin, represent-
ing over 60% of total statin sales. In the markets of Slovenia, 
Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, Atoris remains the 
leading statin in terms of sales volume and the leading atorvas-
tatin in terms of sales value. In 2013 the market share of Atoris 
increased, exceeding 13% among all statins and 27% among 
atorvastatins. We continued to expand the number of markets 
for two additional dosage strengths of 30 mg and 60 mg of 
atorvastatin. We were the first to market these two strengths in 
Kazakhstan, Croatia and some other smaller markets.

Roswera* (rosuvastatin) is Krka’s statin with the quickest sales 
growth rate. Its sales were up by more than 60% in 2013 and 
represent a quarter of all our statin sales. In 2013, Roswera* was 
the most prescribed statin in the markets of Slovenia, Central, 
Eastern and South-Eastern Europe and remained the leading 
generic rosuvastatin in terms of sales value. In this area, it was the 
fastest growing statin in terms of absolute sales growth. In 2013 it 
was launched in Kyrgyzstan and Montenegro. In Ukraine, Croatia 
and some other smaller markets Krka was the first producer to 
launch the new dosage strengths of 15 mg and 30 mg. 

Vasilip (simvastatin) retained its leading position among generic 
simvastatins in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and 
South-Eastern Europe. Our simvastatin was launched in Italy 
and Ireland. 

In 2013 Krka launched Atordapin* (atorvastatin and 
amlodipine), which is Krka’s first polypill. It combines two 
active ingredients for the treatment of two diseases: atorvasta-

tin for treating hyperlipidaemia and amlodipine for treating high 
blood pressure. Atordapin* is already marketed in the Czech 
Republic, Hungary, Slovakia and Romania.

Krka’s statins and their fixed-dose combinations

rosuvastatin (Roswera/Roxera/Sorvasta)

atorvastatin (Atoris) 
atorvastatin and amlodipine (Atordapin/Atorcombo)

simvastatin (Vasilip)

lovastatin (Holetar)

ACE inhibitors
Angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitors (ACE inhibitors), 
which are the key group of medicines for the treatment of high 
blood pressure in addition to sartans, are the largest group of 
Krka’s prescription pharmaceuticals in terms of sales. Two of 
the ACE inhibitors rank among the five leading Krka pharma-
ceuticals in sales terms. In the markets of Slovenia, Central, 
Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, Krka remains the leading 
generic producer of ACE inhibitors and in terms of sales volume 
we remain the first among all producers. 

KRKA IS THE LEADING GENERIC  
PRODUCER OF PERINDOPRIL AND  
ITS FIXED-DOSE COMBINATIONS  
WITH INDAPAMIDE IN EUROPE.

2013 marked 25 years since we first launched Krka’s first ACE 
inhibitor Enap (enalapril). Together with its fixed-dose combi-
nations with hydrochlorothiazide, Enap accounts for the big-
gest share of sales of Krka’s products from this group despite 
the increased use of our newer ACE inhibitors. In the markets 
of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, enal-
april has been the leader for several years and in terms of sales 
volume the most frequently prescribed ACE inhibitor. In 2013  
a new fixed-dose combination with a calcium channel blocker  
Elernap* (enalapril and lercanidipine) was added to the enalapril 
range. We launched it in Portugal as the first generic producer to 
do so.

Krka’s portfolio of perindopril and its fixed-dose combinations 
is the most important in the ACE inhibitors group. These are: 
Prenessa* (perindopril), Co-Prenessa* (perindopril and inda-
pamide) and Amlessa* (perindopril and amlodipine). Krka is the 
leading generic producer of perindopril and its fixed-dose combi-
nations with indapamide in Europe. Our market share expanded 
in 2013. In Slovenia and in Croatia, Prenessa* holds more than 
a 50% market share and is the leader among perindoprils. We 
also increased the number of markets where we market products 
containing perindopril. Prenessa* was launched in Azerbaijan 
and Albania. In Slovenia and the Czech Republic, Prenessa oro-
dispersible tablets were launched, while we launched Amlessa* 
as the first generic producer to do so in eight new markets includ-
ing the Russian Federation, Ukraine and Italy.

Ampril* (ramipril) with its fixed-dose combinations with hydro-
chlorothiazide is the leading generic ramipril in the markets of 
Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe. It was 
also launched in France and Bulgaria.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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Krka’s ACE inhibitors and their fixed-dose combinations

perindopril (Prenessa/Perineva)
perindopril and indapamide (Co-Prenessa/Co-Perineva/Prenewel)
perindopril and amlodipine (Amlessa/Dalnessa/Tonarssa/Dalneva)

enalapril (Enap)
enalapril and hydrochlorothiazide (Enap-H, Enap-HL, Enap-HL 20)
enalapril and lercanidipine (Elernap/Lenap/Elyrno/Enap L Combi)

ramipril (Ampril/Amprilan)
ramipril and hydrochlorothiazide  

(Ampril HL/Amprilan HL, Ampril HD/Amprilan HD)

lisinopril (Laaven/Zonixem)
lisinopril and hydrochlorothiazide  

(Laaven-HL/Zonixem-HL, Laaven-HL 20/Zonixem-HL 20,  
Laaven-HD/Zonixem-HD)

cilazapril (Cazaprol)
cilazapril and hydrochlorothiazide (Cazacombi)

WE LAUNCHED   TOLUCOMBI*,  
THEREBY EXTENDING KRKA'S PRODUCT 
PORTFOLIO OF 6 SARTANS AND  
THEIR FIXED-DOSE COMBINATIONS  
WITH HYDROCHLOROTHIAZIDE.

Sartans (angiotensin II receptor antagonists)
Krka’s portfolio includes six sartans and their fixed-dose com-
binations with hydrochlorothiazide. In 2013 a new fixed-dose 
combination Tolucombi* (telmisartan and hydrochlorothiazide) 
was added. In the same year, Krka remained the leading pro-
ducer of sartans in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern 
and South-Eastern Europe, increasing our market share to 
almost 25%. In this area, over 2.5 million patients are treated 
with Krka’s sartans every day. 

Lorista* (losartan) represents more than one-half of our sartan 
sales and is Krka’s second best-selling product and the first 
in terms of absolute sales growth. In the markets of Slovenia, 
Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, it has an over 
35% market share together with its fixed-dose combinations 
and is the leading losartan in terms of sales volume. In 2013 it 
was launched in Italy and Azerbaijan. In several other markets 
we launched new dosage strengths.

Valsacor (valsartan) is along with its fixed-dose combinations 
with hydrochlorothiazide Krka’s second best-selling sartan. In 
the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern 
Europe it is the leading valsartan with a nearly 30% market 
share. In Slovenia and Lithuania, the Czech Republic, Slovakia 
and some other markets, the share of Valsacor among valsar-
tans already exceeds 50%. Our valsartan is successfully sold in 
Western European markets and was launched in Spain in 2013.

Karbis* (candesartan) was, with its fixed-dose combinations 
with hydrochlorothiazide, Krka’s sartan with the biggest sales 
growth in 2013 and with respect to this ratio also one of the 
five most successful products. The greatest amounts of can-
desartan are sold in Western Europe with Germany and Spain 
contributing most to sales growth. In the markets of Slovenia, 
Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, it is the top generic 
candesartan and leads among all candesartan products in 
Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary. In 2013 we launched 
it as the first generic producer in Italy and Hungary.

Tolura* (telmisartan) with its fixed-dose combinations with 
hydrochlorothiazide also reached a high, namely over 60% 
sales growth compared to 2012. Krka launched Tolura as 
the first generic producer in several new markets, especially 
Western Europe – Germany, France, Spain, Italy and also Slo-
venia and Croatia. We launched Tolucombi*, which is the new 
combination of telmisartan and hydrochlorothiazide, in several 
markets of Central and South-Eastern Europe. In the mar-
kets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, 
Tolura* is the leading generic telmisartan.

Krka’s sartans and their fixed-dose combinations

losartan (Lorista/Lavestra)
losartan and hydrochlorothiazide  

(Lorista H/Lavestra H, Lorista HL/Lavestra HL, Lorista HD/Lavestra HD)

valsartan (Valsacor)
valsartan and hydrochlorothiazide 

(Valsacombi/Co-Valsacor/Valsacor H/Valsaden)

telmisartan (Tolura/Telmista)
telmisartan and hydrochlorothiazide (Tolucombi/Telmista H)

candesartan (Karbis/Candecor/Canocord)
candesartan and hydrochlorothiazide (Karbicombi/Cancombino)

irbesartan (Ifirmasta/Irabel)
irbesartan and hydrochlorothiazide (Ifirmacombi/Co-Irabel)

olmesartan (Olimestra)
olmesartan and hydrochlorothiazide (Co-Olimestra)

Other medicines for the treatment of high blood 
pressure
Krka’s portfolio of pharmaceuticals for the treatment of high 
blood pressure, in addition to ACE inhibitors and sartans, 
includes products from other groups including calcium channel 
blocker groups Tenox* (amlodipine), diuretic Rawel SR (inda-
pamide) and adrenergic receptor blockers Coryol (carvedilol) 
and Niperten* (bisoprolol). Marketing activities of products 
which have been available in several markets for many years 
were extended to new markets in 2013. In Ireland, we launched 
indapamide, amlodipine and carvedilol, in Italy also amlodipine, 
and Niperten in Uzbekistan, Kazakhstan and Kyrgyzstan.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
DISEASES OF THE ALIMENTARY TRACT AND 
METABOLISM
Proton pump inhibitors
Our portfolio contains five proton pump inhibitors. We were the 
leading producer of these medicines for the fifth consecutive 
year in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe. Krka has the highest absolute sales growth 
in these areas. In Slovenia, Lithuania and Hungary we are the 
leading producer of proton pump inhibitors with market shares 
of above 20% and almost 50% in Slovenia. The greatest 
number of medicines from this group is sold in Germany, the 
Russian Federation and Poland.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.

KRKA IS THE LEADING GENERIC PRODUCER 
OF ESOMEPRAZOLE IN EUROPE. 

Nolpaza* (pantoprazole) is Krka’s most important proton pump 
inhibitor, representing nearly 45% of product sales from this 
group. The prescription product is supplemented in several 
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markets by a product containing pantoprazole, which is availa-
ble without prescription. We are one of the leading generic pro-
ducers of pantoprazole in Europe. In the Russian Federation, 
Slovenia, Lithuania, Slovakia and some other markets, Nolpaza 
is the leading pantoprazole, while in Slovenia, Hungary and Slo-
vakia doctors prescribe it more frequently than any other proton 
pump inhibitor. In 2013 Nolpaza was launched in Azerbaijan. In 
Ukraine, Kazakhstan and Turkmenistan it was launched in the 
form of a solution for injection.

Emanera* (esomeprazole) represents over 30% of sales of 
Krka’s proton pump inhibitors. We are the leading generic 
producer of esomeprazole in Europe and in 2013 we further 
expanded our market share. In Poland, the Czech Republic 
and Slovakia, Emanera* is the market leader with an over 50% 
market share. Krka was also successful in Western Europe as 
our esomeprazole is the first among esomeprazoles in terms of 
sales volume in Germany. In 2013, Emanera* was launched in 
Spain, Kazakhstan, Ukraine and Albania and as the first generic 
esomeprazole in the Russian Federation.

Krka’s portfolio is supplemented by Lanzul* (lansoprazole) and 
Gelbra* (rabeprazole), and slightly less than 10% of our proton 
pump inhibitors’ sales still come from Ultop (omeprazole), our 
first product in this group. Krka is among the leading generic 
producers of lansoprazole and rabeprazole in Europe. In 2013 
the marketing activities for lansoprazole were extended to 
France and rabeprazole was launched in Spain, Austria, Lithua-
nia and the Czech Republic.

Krka’s proton pump inhibitors

esomeprazole (Emanera/Emozul/Escadra)

pantoprazole (Nolpaza/Appryo)

rabeprazole (Gelbra/Zulbex)

lansoprazole (Lanzul/Lansoptol)

omeprazole (Ultop)

Oral antidiabetics
Krka’s most important product in this therapeutic area is Gliclada* 
(gliclazide), an oral antidiabetic in prolonged release tablet form. In 
2013 we remained the leading generic producer of gliclazide pro-
longed release tablets in Western Europe. Gliclada* is the leading 
generic gliclazide in several markets of Central Europe. In 2013 we 
were the first generic producer to launch it in Slovenia and France 
and in several other markets the portfolio was complemented by 
the dosage strength of 60 mg as the first and only generic pro-
ducer to offer it. We launched this dosage form in Romania, Lithua-
nia, Portugal and other markets. Our portfolio of oral antidiabetics 
includes Enyglid* (repaglinide) and Meglimid (glimepiride).

Medicines for the treatment of obesity
Our product for the treatment of obesity is Orsoten (orlistat), 
which contains 120 mg of orlistat and is a prescription phar-
maceutical. It is complimented by a non-prescription product 
Orsoten Slim containing 60 mg orlistat. Orsoten is marketed in 
the Russian Federation and Kazakhstan and since 2013 also in 
Turkmenistan. Its sales compared to 2012 increased by 25%, 
the most in the Russian Federation. In this market Orsoten is 
the leading generic orlistat, while our products containing orli-
stat hold an almost 45% share.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF  
THE CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM
Antipsychotics
For several years, in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern 
and South-Eastern Europe we have been the leading producer 
among generic producers of antipsychotics. In this therapeu-
tic area, we remain the only producer offering five active sub-
stances which are the leading in the world in sales terms. Krka 
sells the most antipsychotics in the Russian Federation and 
Germany. The Russian Federation also recorded the strongest 
sales growth in 2013.

KRKA IS THE LEADING GENERIC PRODUCER 
OF OLANZAPINE IN WESTERN EUROPE.

More than one-half of sales of our antipsychotics are accounted 
for by Zalasta* (olanzapine) and Kventiax* (quetiapine), while 
Zypsilan* (ziprasidone) experienced the highest absolute sales 
growth. In 2013 ziprasidone was launched in Germany, Spain, 
Austria, the Czech Republic and Estonia. We are one of the 
leading generic producers of olanzapine and ziprasidone in 
Europe, while in Western Europe we are the leading generic 
producer of olanzapine.

Krka’s atypical antipsychotics

olanzapine (Zalasta/Zolrix)

quetiapine (Kventiax/Quentiax)

risperidone (Torendo/Rorendo)

ziprasidone (Zypsilan/Zypsila/Ypsila)

aripiprazole (Zylaxera)

Antidepressants
Krka remained the leading generic producer of antidepressants 
in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern 
Europe in 2013.

Elicea* (escitalopram) remained the leading generic escitalo-
pram in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe. In 2013 our escitalopram was launched in 
Portugal and Kosovo. We were the first generic producer to 
offer Elicea* orodispersible tablets in Poland, the Czech Repub-
lic and Slovakia.

Alventa* (venlafaxine) represents more than 30% of the sales of 
Krka’s antidepressants. In several markets it holds considerable 
market shares, and in Slovakia, the Czech Republic, Slovenia 
and Lithuania it represents over one-quarter of the venlafax-
ine market. Krka’s venlafaxine is among the leading generic 
venlafaxines in the European Union. With respect to Western 
European markets, it was also launched in Spain, France and 
Ireland in 2013.

Our portfolio of antidepressants also contains Asentra (sertra-
line) and Mirzaten (mirtazapine). Asentra is the leading generic 
sertraline, while Mirzaten is the leading mirtazapine in the mar-
kets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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Krka’s antidepressants

escitalopram (Elicea/Ecytara/Anxila)

venlafaxine (Alventa/Olwexya)

sertraline (Asentra)

mirtazapine (Mirzaten)

KRKA LAUNCHED MEMANTINE IN OVER 10 
NEW MARKETS.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
ALZHEIMER’S DISEASE
In 2013 we remained the leading generic producer of pharma-
ceuticals for the treatment of Alzheimer’s disease in the mar-
kets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe.  
The majority of these medicines are sold in Western Europe:  
Germany, Scandinavia, the UK and Portugal. 

Marixino* (memantine) represents about 40% of the sales of 
Krka’s pharmaceuticals used for the treatment of Alzheimer’s 
disease and ranks among the three leading Krka products in 
terms of absolute sales growth. It was launched in 2012, and 
in 2013 marketing activities were extended to more than ten 
new markets including Slovenia, France, Spain, Romania and 
Poland. In the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe, Krka’s memantine is one of the leading generic 
memantines. In Slovenia, Romania and Lithuania it is the lead-
ing generic memantine.

Approximately 35% of Krka’s product sales for the treatment 
of Alzheimer’s disease is represented by Galsya SR* (galan-
tamine). Krka’s galantamine remained the leading generic 
galantamine in the European Union in 2013. Galsya SR* is the 
leading galantamine in Slovakia and, with a nearly 50% market 
share, Krka’s galantamine is also the leader in Germany.

Our product portfolio for the treatment of Alzheimer’s dis-
ease is complemented by Yasnal* (donepezil) and Nimvastid 
(rivastigmine). Also in 2013 Yasnal* was the leading donepezil 
in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-East-
ern Europe. Nimvastid is the leading generic rivastigmine in 
these areas. Krka is also among the leading generic produc-
ers of donepezil and rivastigmine in Germany and in the UK. 
Nimvastid was launched in Spain in 2013 and remains the only 
rivastigmine in the form of orodispersible tablets available in 
our markets.

Krka’s medicines for the treatment  
of Alzheimer’s disease

memantine (Memaxa/Maruxa/Marixino/Mentixa/Maryzola)

galantamine (Galsya SR/Galnora)

donepezil (Yasnal/Yasnoro)

rivastigmine (Nimvastid)

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
PARKINSON’S DISEASE
In 2013 Krka remained one of the leading generic producers 
of medicines for the treatment of Parkinson’s disease in the 
markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern 
Europe. Most of these medicines were sold in Germany and 
other Western European countries.

Rolpryna SR* (ropinirole) represents over two-thirds of sales of 
our products from this therapeutic area. Krka’s ropinirole with 
prolonged release remained the leading generic ropinirole in 
Europe. We also launched it in Croatia.

Oprymea (pramipexole) continued to be the leader among gene-
ric producers in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and 
South-Eastern Europe. Our pramipexole is one of the leading pra-
mipexoles in the UK and we also launched it in Austria. At the end 
of 2013 Krka launched pramipexole with prolonged release in Ger-
many, which will further strengthen our position among suppliers 
of medicinal products for the treatment of Parkinson’s disease. 

ANALGESICS
Doreta (tramadol and paracetamol) and Naklofen duo 
(diclofenac) are our most important prescription analgesics. In 
the markets of Slovenia, Central and South-Eastern Europe, 
Doreta is the leading generic fixed-dose combination of tra-
madol and paracetamol, while in Poland, Slovakia and in 
Romania it ranks first among all competitors. We launched this 
fixed-dose combination in France and Spain in 2013, while our 
unique double dosage strength (75 mg tramadol and 650 mg 
paracetamol) was launched in Croatia. We are the only generic 
producer in our markets to offer the higher, double-dosage 
strength of this fixed-dose combination. 

In 2013 we launched a prescription pharmaceutical Nalgesin* 
(naproxen), complemented by a non-prescription product with 
the same active substance. The launch in Poland, Hungary 
and Slovakia along with intense marketing activities in existing 
markets resulted in a threefold increase in sales of this medi-
cine compared to 2012.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
INFECTIONS
Krka’s most important medicines for the treatment of infections 
are Fromilid (clarithromycin), Azibiot (azithromycin), Nolicin 
(norfloxacin) and Ciprinol (ciprofloxacin). 

Belonging to the group of macrolides, Fromilid is the leading generic 
macrolide in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe and the fourth best-selling brand among producers 
of macrolides. In these markets Krka is the third-ranked producer 
of macrolides. In Slovenia, Ukraine, Hungary and some smaller 
markets, Fromilid is the leading clarithromycin. The prolonged 
release dosage form Fromilid uno was launched in Azerbaijan in 
2013, while Azibiot was launched in Serbia and Romania.

Nolicin and Ciprinol belong to the group of fluoroquinolones. 
Krka is the leading generic producer of medicines from this 
group in the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-
Eastern Europe. Ciprinol is the leading ciprofloxacin in several 
markets, including Romania, Ukraine and Croatia.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.



2013 Annual Report   |  Introduction  >> Business Report  >> Sustainable Development  >> Financial Report

64

KRKA REMAINS THE LEADING GENERIC 
PRODUCER OF CLOPIDOGREL IN EUROPE.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
DISEASES OF THE BLOOD AND BLOOD-
FORMING ORGANS
In 2013 Zyllt* (clopidogrel) continued to be one of Krka’s best-
selling medicines, keeping its position as the leading generic 
producer of clopidogrel in Europe. In terms of sales volume,  
it remained the leading clopidogrel in the Russian Federation.  
It is also ranked first in Hungary and some smaller markets.  
We sell the most clopidogrel in Western Europe and the Rus-
sian Federation, where Zyllt* achieved the highest sales growth. 
In 2013 clopidogrel was launched in Italy.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
DISEASES OF THE URINARY TRACT
Vizarsin (sildenafil) is Krka’s most important medicine in this 
therapeutic area. We are the only producer of sildenafil oro-
dispersible tablets which can be taken without water. In 2013 
sildenafil was launched in those Western European countries 
where it had not been marketed before. We were among the 
first generic producers to launch it in the form of tablets and 
orodispersible tablets in Germany, France, Italy, Spain, Aus-
tria and Ireland. Vizarsin was also launched in Uzbekistan and 
Latvia, while in the Czech Republic orodispersible tablets were 
added to the portfolio. In Western Europe, Krka is one of the 
five leading generic producers of sildenafil and in Slovenia, 
Romania and Lithuania we are the leading generic producer.

Tanyz/Tanyz ERAS (tamsulozin) is used for the treatment of 
benign prostatic hyperplasia. Under the name Tanyz ERAS, it 
is available in a prolonged release pharmaceutical form. In the 
Czech Republic, Slovenia and Latvia Tanyz/Tanyz ERAS is the 
leading generic tamsulosin and ranks third in Central, Eastern 
and South-Eastern Europe. The product portfolio for the tre-
atment of the urinary tract is complemented by Finpros (fina-
steride) for the treatment of benign prostatic hyperplasia and 
Asolfena (solifenacin) for the treatment of urinary incontinence.

MEDICINES FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
DISEASES OF THE RESPIRATORY SYSTEM
Our portfolio of new products for the treatment of the 
respiratory system consists of Cezera* (levocetirizine) and 
Dasselta* (desloratidine), which are used to alleviate the 
symptoms of allergies, and Monkasta* (montelukast) which 
in addition to relieving allergy symptoms also treats chronic 
bronchial asthma. In the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern 
and South-Eastern Europe all three products are among the 
leading generic medicines. In Lithuania and Estonia, Monkasta* 
is the first among competitors. Dasselta* was launched in 
Poland and Croatia. In 2013 Krka strengthened its position 
in Western Europe. In Spain we launched levocetirizine, 
montelukast and desloratidine, and in Italy montelukast and 
desloratidine. We also launched montelukast in France and in 
Germany and Austria as the first generic producer. In Germany 
levocetirizine was launched in 2012 and became the leading 
generic producer of levocetirizine in 2013.

ONCOLOGY MEDICINES
In 2013 we introduced a new therapeutic class of medicinal 
products, oncology medicines, which is one of the largest and 
fastest growing therapeutic classes in the world.

Meaxin* (imatinib) is a protein kinase inhibitor used for the treat-
ment of chronic myeloid leukaemia, gastrointestinal stromal 
tumours and some other less frequent diseases. We launched 
it in Slovenia, the Russian Federation and Romania. As one of 
the first generic producers, we also launched it in Lithuania, 
Estonia and Croatia, and as the first generic producer in Slo-
vakia and Latvia. 

Lortanda* (letrozole) and Escepran* (exemestane) are aro-
matase inhibitors and are used to treat breast cancer. We 
launched them in Poland, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Roma-
nia, Lithuania and Latvia. Tolnexa (docetaxel) is a medicine 
from the group of taxanes, which is key in the chemotherapy 
of several common cancers like lung cancer, breast cancer and 
prostate cancer. It was launched in the Czech Republic, Slova-
kia, Romania and Lithuania. Ecansya (capecitabine) belongs to 
the group of pyrimidine analogues and is used independently 
or in combination with other medicines used to treat colorectal 
cancer, stomach cancer and breast cancer. As one of the first 
generic producers, we launched it in Germany, Romania, the 
Czech Republic and Slovakia. 

Non-prescription products
In 2013 the Krka Group sold EUR 145.3 million worth of non-
prescription products, which is an increase of 18% compared 
to 2012.

Among the ten largest markets, absolute sales growth was the 
highest in the Russian Federation, Ukraine, Poland and, among 
other markets, in Belarus, Kyrgyzstan and Turkmenistan.

WITH ONCOLOGY MEDICINES, KRKA ENTERED 
A NEW THERAPEUTIC AREA IN 2013.

SALES OF NON-PRESCRIPTION PRODUCTS 
INCREASED BY 18% IN 2013.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.

Krka’s most important non-prescription brands are Herbion, 
Septolete, Bilobil and Pikovit, which are ranked among 15 
of Krka’s leading products. They are followed by Nalgesin 
S*, Panzynorm and Duovit. All of these brands are also the 
leading brands in terms of absolute sales growth. The big-
gest share of non-prescription product sales was contributed 
by vitamin and mineral products. It was these products and 
products improving cerebral and peripheral circulation that 
experienced the highest sales growth of nearly 30%.
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Sales of non-prescription products in the 10 largest markets
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Sales of non-prescription products 
by therapeutic class in 2013

Herbion is the leading brand of non-prescription products, 
which includes herbal cough syrups for various kinds of 
coughs. Herbion cowslip syrup and Herbion ivy syrup 
facilitate expectoration, while Herbion plantain syrup and the 
new Herbion Iceland moss syrup* relieve dry cough. Herbion 
Iceland moss syrup* also relieves sore throat and hoarseness. 
Herbion Iceland moss syrup* was in 2013 launched in Croatia, 
Kosovo, Latvia and Macedonia. New products under this brand 
were launched in Austria, Lithuania and Belarus. Product sales 
under this brand name increased by nearly 30% in 2013.

SALES OF HERBION, THE LEADING BRAND 
AMONG KRKA'S NON-PRESCRIPTION 
PRODUCTS INCREASED IN 2013 BY NEARLY 30%.

Septolete is the second most important non-prescription 
brand in terms of sales. The brand contains lozenges and 
spray for relief from sore throat. In 2013 we entered the junior 
segment. In Poland we launched Septolete junior intended 
for children aged four and over. We increased the number of 
markets in which we market our well-established brands. We 
launched Septolete plus honey and lime in Ukraine, Moldova 
and Mongolia. Septolete plus spray was launched in Uzbe-
kistan, Georgia and Moldavia. Product sales of the Septolete 
brand rose by nearly 20% in 2013.

Krka’s third most important non-prescription product brand 
is Bilobil under which we market products containing ginkgo 
extract. Their sales were up by more than 30% in 2013.  
In the markets of Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern 
Europe, Bilobil ranks as the leading ginkgo product in sales 
volume terms. In many markets the brand has been achiev-
ing large market shares, exceeding 35% in Slovenia, Ukraine 
and Romania. Most Bilobil is sold in Romania and the Russian 
Federation where sales in 2013 increased the most. The prod-
uct containing the most ginkgo, Bilobil intense (120 mg), was 
launched in Kazakhstan, Mongolia and Armenia, and Bilobil 
forte (80 mg) in Kyrgyzstan.

Pikovit and Duovit are Krka’s most important brands of 
vitamins and minerals, whose sales increased by over a 
third in 2013. The Pikovit brand comprises eight products 
for children, while Duovit brand products are intended for 
adults and are adjusted to the specific needs of the male 
and female body. The largest market for these two brands 
in terms of sales is the Russian Federation where sales rose 
the most. They are also successful in terms of sales in other 
Eastern European countries and, in many of them, Pikovit 
ranks first among vitamin and mineral products for children 
in sales volume terms.  

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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Pikovit and Duovit were winners in their categories in a 
competition in Kyrgyzstan where experts and customers 
assessed the quality and popularity of products.

SALES OF PIKOVIT, THE LEADING PRODUCT 
BRAND AMONG KRKA'S VITAMIN AND 
MINERAL PRODUCTS, INCREASED BY 40%  
IN 2013.

Nalgesin* S (naproxen) is our leading non-prescription anal-
gesic which is complemented by prescription products con-
taining naproxen. Also in 2013 marketing activities for this 
brand were expanded to new markets or the portfolio was 
expanded in existing markets. In this way, Nalgesin* was 
launched in Romania, Kazakhstan, Azerbaijan, Turkmenistan, 
Kyrgyzstan, Latvia and Portugal. The greatest quantity is sold 
in the Russian Federation where pharmacists recommended 
it for pain relief most often. The success and creativity of our 
marketing solutions were proven by the Bronze Effie Award 
Krka received in the Russian Federation for the successful 
marketing and communication strategy for Nalgesin.

At the end of 2013, Septoaqua for adults and Septoaqua for 
children were launched under the brand Septoaqua. Both prod-
ucts contain an isotonic sterile solution of mineral salts and are 
intended for moistening and cleaning the nasal mucosa. Their 
advantage lies in the special puff volume adjusted for adults and 
children. They were launched in the Czech Republic, Slovakia 
and Kazakhstan.

Animal health products
In 2013 the Krka Group sold EUR 42.6 million worth of animal 
health products, which is about the same as in 2012. Among the 
ten leading markets, absolute sales growth was the highest in 
France, Ukraine and in Poland where in particular sales of com-
panion animal products grew. Largely as a result of less intense 
animal farming, sales decreased in the Russian Federation.

In Slovenia, Central, Eastern and South-Eastern Europe, 
animal health products are marketed via our own marketing 
and sales network which we also began to build in Germany 
and the Benelux countries. In other Western European and 
Overseas markets, animal health products are sold via our 
partner companies.

Sales of animal health products in the 10 largest markets
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ENROXIL*, FLORON AND FYPRYST ARE 
KRKA'S CORE ANIMAL HEALTH PRODUCTS.

Enroxil* (enrofloxacin) remains our leading animal health prod-
uct. The Enroxil brand contains several dosage forms, includ-
ing the Enroxil* Max single-dose solution for injection and 
the Enroxil Flavour flavoured tablets used in the treatment 
of companion animals. The most products containing enro-
floxacin were sold in the Russian Federation and nearly 40% 
in France, Germany and other countries of Western Europe. In 
2013 flavoured Enroxil* tablets were also launched in Ireland.

Fypryst (fipronil) is Krka’s most important veterinary product 
for companion animals and one of our leading animal health 
products. Under this brand, in 2013 the launch was made of 
Fypryst cutaneous spray, which is particularly suitable when 
animals have been severely infested by external parasites. We 
launched it on several markets, including Slovenia, the Russian 
Federation, Benelux and Poland. In 2013, veterinarians chose 
Fypryst pipettes as the best pipette among competitive ‘spot-
on’ products.

Floron (florfenicol), Kokcisan (salinomycin) and Toltarox* (toltra-
zuril) are among five leading Krka animal health products. In 2013 
we increased the number of markets and added a new product 
Floron oral powder. Toltarox* was launched in Ireland.

Marfloxin* (marbofloxacin) is third-generation fluoroquinolone, 
which is used for treating bacterial infections in cattle and pigs. 
Most marbofloxacin is sold in France, Belgium, Germany and 
other markets of Western Europe. In 2013 we launched it on sev-

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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eral new markets, namely Marfloxin* tablets on seven new mar-
kets including Slovenia, Romania, Poland, the Czech Republic, 
and solution for injections in Croatia, Ukraine and Serbia.

Another of Krka’s ten leading animal health products is  
Ecocid/Oxicid S disinfectant. In 2013 we launched the new 
Ecocid Advanced disinfectant containing peroxyacetic acid.

Antiparasitics, which belong to our portfolio of companion ani-
mal health products, are sold under the brand Dehinel Plus 
(febantel, praziquantel, pyrantel embonate). These include 
tablets for large dogs Dehinel Plus XL and flavoured tab-
lets Dehinel Plus Flavour. The range is complemented by 
Rycarfa (carprofen), non-steroidal anti-inflammatory medi-
cine against inflammation and for pain relief. Carprofen was 
launched in Ireland in 2013.

Flimabend* (flubendazole) is Krka’s new antiparasitic for food-
producing animals with which Krka has been strengthening its 
position in this area. Flimabend’s efficacy has been proven by 
our own research. It is available in an innovative pharmaceuti-
cal form characterised by excellent solubility, and homogeneity 
and stability in mixing with water. Krka entered the market as the 
first generic, we launched it on nine markets, including Slovenia, 
France, Romania, Poland and Hungary. Flimabend* is Krka’s ani-
mal health product with the highest absolute sales growth in 2013.

Entemulin* (tiamulin), a new animal health product in the form of 
water-soluble granules, also achieved high sales growth. In 2013 it 
was launched in the Russian Federation, Belarus and Macedonia.

IN 2013 WE LAUNCHED FLIMABEND* 
(FLUBENDAZOLE), A NEW ANTIPARASITIC 
FOR FOOD-PRODUCING ANIMALS IN AN 
INNOVATIVE PHARMACEUTICAL FORM.

Health resort and tourist 
services  
In their business units in Šmarješke and Dolenjske Toplice, 
Strunjan, Novo Mesto and Otočec, the spa resort group Terme 
Krka recorded 335,243 overnight stays, up 1% compared to 
2012. Despite the higher number of overnight stays, the rev-
enue decreased by 4%, amounting to EUR 30.5 million. Due 
to measures taken by the Health Insurance Institute of Slov-
enia, Terme Krka, the leading provider of medical rehabilitation 
among Slovenian health and spa resorts, was forced to con-
siderably lower its prices for health spa services and accom-
modation. We recorded fewer overnight stays by and services 
for local guests, while the number of overnight stays by for-
eign guests rose by 7%, which is why their share increased by  
2 percentage points, to 33%.  

The majority of foreign guests is Italian, who contributed 8% to 
all overnight stays, i.e. 5% growth. They are followed by Rus-
sian, Israeli, Austrian and Dutch guests. We see the highest 
market potential for Krka health resort and tourist services in the 
Russian Federation so in 2013 we continued to establish and 
strengthen contacts with Russian hospitals, health insurance 
companies and other companies that send guests to reha-
bilitation and preventive health programmes. Terme Šmarješke 
Toplice was 66% full, Terme Dolenjske Toplice 64% and Talaso 
Strunjan 80%.   

In 2013 Terme Krka received the “Sejalec” Award for the most 
innovative tourist product VitaGen in Šmarješke Toplice, which 
advises guests how to eat and live healthily based on their 
genetic code.

* Products mentioned in this chapter marked with * are marketed under different brand names in individual markets. They are listed at the end of the chapter.
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